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~ CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEHR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Yuming (Chairman and President)

Mr. Fang Zhifeng (Vice President)
(resigned on 31 July 2020)

Mr. Zhao Xingli (resigned on 4 June 2020)

Mr. Yang Guo (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on |1 August 2020)

Mr. Wei Rongda (Vice President)
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Ms. Fang Lan

Mr. Cai Jiangnan

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (appointed on 24 August 2020)
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Ms. Fang Lan (Chairman)

Mr. Kong Aiguo (resigned on 24 August 2020)
Mr. Cai Jiangnan
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan
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Mr. Chen Wai (resigned on 29 September 2020)
Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan
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Chaoyang District
Beijing

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
YNCIE-¢oX¢ )

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND HERBTERMBFERE
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYI-1111, Cayman lslands KYI-1111, Cayman Islands
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Tricor Investor Services Limited PERSFERARAR

Level 54, Hopewell Centre B8

183 Queen’s Road East ERAER 1835

Hong Kong B M54

AUDITOR B BHED

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited PEZESHMEHERERAF
Certified Public Accountants HEEEHAD

Unit 701-3 & 8, Citicorp Centre BE

18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay RS R IEIEE 1857

Hong Kong BEEBPO0138E
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Fangda Partners
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Hong Kong
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ICBC Co, Ltd.
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Panjiayuan Nanli
Chaoyang District
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China
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Harmonicare, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders and customers for their support to and understanding of the

Group.

In 2019, macroeconomic growth in China slowed down with a continuously weakening
economic benefit nationwide. Meanwhile, the number of newborns hit a new low.
Furthermore, obstetrics and gynecology industry was under increasing competition and
pressure due to the increasing number of public and private medical institutions year
by year, which also affected the business operation of the Group. In 2019, the Group
focused on asset optimization, core hospital upgrades, cost management enhancement,
new construction and post-investment management of investment projects. In 2019,
the Group's results declined to a certain degree as the Group's disposal of Shenzhen
HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital, and proposed disposal of Wuhan
Modem Hospital, Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital and Chongging Wanzhou Hospital, as
well as the government's demolition and relocation order received by Guangzhou Woman
Hospital, Fuzhou Modern Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital and Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital.

In 2019, the Group strived to strengthen profitability through asset disposal, improvement
of hospital operation and enhancement of medical service quality. Through the
comprehensive assessment of external market environment, hospital ambiance, hardware
facilities, word-of-mouth reputation, business structure, medical quality and operation
management, the Group properly disposed of non-performing assets and concentrated

limited resources on core hospitals, which relieved the Group's operating pressure.

We will face up to pressure and strive to enhance the Company's sustainability to provide
the best solid guarantee for the Company’s future development. On behalf of the Board
of Directors, | would like to extend my gratitude to all shareholders, employees and

customers for their strong support.

Lin Yuming

Chairman

Beijing, 8 January 2021
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IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBME
HRAB B PR ot 35 3R o5 2 R
For the year ended 3| December
BENA3ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
ARBETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS & ¥4E
Revenue Yias 826,143 1,014,990 924,151 859,701 909,362
(Loss) profit before tax Fial (&8 ) M (422,764) (749,353) 33947 123,886 141,967
Income tax expense FTiE R (2,319) (35,858) (4,509) (26,615) (31,566)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (BE) FHE (425,083) (785211) 29,438 97,271 110,401
Other comprehensive income  EAZHEUA = 138 4 228 =
Total comprehensive (expense) FRZMH ()
income for the year Nt (425,083) (785,073) 29,480 97,499 110401
Attributable to: AR AL HES :
Owners of the Company ARAEEA (334,048) (725,161) 27,436 95936 106,173
Non-controlling interests IR (91,035) (59912) 2,044 1,563 4228
(425,083) (785,073) 29,480 97,499 110401
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Total assets mEE 1,381,627 1,210,205 1,827,120 683575 1,628,061
Total liabilities raf (1,123,689) (532,034) (245012) (300,194) (217,096)
257,938 678,171 1,582,108 1,383,381 1,410,965
Equity attributable to AT ALEERER
Owners of the Company RRAER A 226,994 561,042 1,354,105 1,389,098 1,408909
Non-controlling interests FEER R 30,944 117,129 228,003 (5717) 2,056

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £} <z>



e

' MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB826,143,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,014,990,000), representing an decrease of
about 18.6% compared to that of 2018. The revenue from the provision of specialised
hospital services accounted for 97.7% of the total revenue of the Group, which basically
maintained at a stable level as compared with 96.7% for the year ended 3| December
2018. The Group's loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB334,048,000 in 2019 as compared to the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB725,299,000 in 2018. Gross profit margin was approximately 29.3% as compared
to 38.8% in last year.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Business Overview for 2019

In 2019, affected by the slowdown in economic growth and weakening economic
efficiency, the disposable income of residents showed a downward trend. As economic
pressure continues to increase and the concept of fertility changes, childbirth preferences
of population of the right age continue to weaken. According to data released by the
National Bureau of Statistics, the number of newborns in 2019 reached a new low at
14,650,000. In addition, as the number of public and private medical institutions has
increased year by year, the pressure of competition in the obstetrics and gynecology

industry has further increased.

By the end of 2019, the Group established a total of I3 mid to high-end ob-gyn and
pediatrics specialty hospitals with 768 beds in 8 tier-1 and tier-2 cities in China, among
which the construction of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital and Zhengzhou HarMoniCare
Hospital has been completed and these two hospitals are currently under acceptance and
pending operation. In addition, the Group's Xiamen HarMoniCare Hospital is still under

construction.

In 2019, the Group focused on asset optimization, hospital upgrades and cost
management. In the year, the number of outpatient services provided by the Group's
hospitals in operation was 556,740, representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.6% over
2018. The number of inpatient hospital services provided was 18,296, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 28.7% over last year. Average charge per diagnosis and treatment
was RMB,366.5, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3% over last year. The number
of newborns was 7,482, representing a year-on-year decrease of 31.1% over 2018. The
Group recorded revenue of RMB826 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
18.6% over last year; and net loss of RMB425 million, representing a decrease in loss of
46% over the year ended 31 December 2018.

The decline in operating results and revenue of the Group in 2019 was mainly due to
the following: (i) the decrease in the number of hospitals as the Group disposed of
Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital, ChongQing Dushi Liren
Hospital and Chongging Wanzhou Hospital in 2019; (i) Guangzhou Woman Hospital,
Fuzhou Modermn Hospital and Nantong Hemeijia Hospital, the key hospitals under the
Group, were required to be demolished and relocated by the government. The impatient
departments of two hospitals in Guangzhou and Fuzhou were no longer able to accept
new patients. Nantong Hemeijia Hospital moved to the transitional operation site, and
the inpatient department was closed from April 2019 due to area restrictions; and (iii) the
Group planned to sell Wuhan Modern Hospital, which have a certain impact on hospital

operations and staff stability.
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CoNTINUED)
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Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital co-established by the Group in 2019 with a gross floor
area of approximately | 1,500 square meters operated 50 registered beds, and the
self-built Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Hospital with a gross floor area of approximately
14,800 square meters operated 150 registered beds. The preparation of these two new
hospitals has been completed and the opening has been delayed due to funding issue. The
above-ground of the main building of the new Nantong Hemeijia Hospital had topped
out and it is expected to start trial operation in 2021. The hospital has a planned gross
floor area of approximately 80,000 square meters and 400 beds. It is planned to be buift
as a tertiary hospital of obstetrics and gynecology with standards of Joint Commission

International (“JCI") as the standards of preparation for construction.

Industry Outlook

In recent years, the comprehensive second-child and maternity protection policies
implemented by China have failed to effectively promote the growth of the number
of newborns. Affected by changes in fertility concepts and increased living costs, the
national birth rate decline in the future may continue. However, as customers’ demand for
treatment experience continues to escalate, the Group remains optimistic about the mid
to high-end medical service market. Atthough the spread of COVID-19 will have a certain
impact on the Group's performance in the first half of 2020, the Group will continue to
embrace challenges with a positive attitude and continuously improve the medical quality
and service of the subordinate hospitals, to consolidate brand reputation and differentiated

advantages and enhance the Group's market competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s Strategy

In 2020, the Group will ensure the stable and sustainable development of the existing
hospitals, upgrade the existing hospitals’ environments and services, and improve the
management level; at the same time, the Group will strengthen the post-investment
management of the invested projects in order to create income for the Group as soon as

possible. Our strategies include:

. Strengthening medical quality and medical safety, strictly following JCI medical
standards and strengthening medical staffs awareness of risk control, to reduce

medical risks and ensure customer safety and brand reputation;

0 Strengthening operation control and building an operation control system
integrating budget, cost management and performance management to discover

problems in time, optimize management and achieve reasonable performance;

. Converting marketing strategies by focusing on the operation and promotion in
word-of-mouth websites, on new media and video marketing, and the shaping of
buitt-in traffic resources such as word-of-mouth, doctors, and technology to further

reduce marketing costs;

) Strengthening the improvement of labor efficiency and optimizing the
performance system by optimizing the construction of doctor echelon and

streamlining non-medical department personnel, so as to reduce labor costs;

0 Strengthening the regional resource sharing of hospitals in Beijing, Guiyang,
Chongging and other regions to create greater benefits by maximizing the use of

resources;
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CoNTINUED)

EEEWE DT @

0 Strengthening the business guidance and team training of new hospitals,
duplicating the successful experience of existing hospitals in strict accordance
with JCl standards, to safeguard HarMoniCare brand and accelerate the pace of

profitability;

J Optimizing the asset structure, and properly dealing with non-performing assets
through comprehensive evaluation of the external market environment, hospital
environment, hardware facilities, hospital reputation, business structure, medical
quality, and operation and management conditions to concentrate limited

resources on core hospitals;

. Further strengthening the upstream and downstream industrial chains, enriching
and strengthening hospitals’ auxiliary reproductive, pediatric, maternity care
center, postpartum rehabilitation and medical aesthetics services, to provide

all-round peace of mind services for women and children.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 3,086 employees (2018: 3,983 employees).

The remuneration policy and packages are reviewed annually by the management and
the Remuneration Committee. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, work experience and the prevailing market rate. The remuneration packages
include basic salary, double pay, commission, insurance and mandatory provident fund.
The Group has adopted a share option scheme and a restricted share incentive scheme
to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or potential

contribution to the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the total cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately RMB33,853,000 (2018: approximately RMB133,846,000). The cash and

bank balances consisted majority in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately RMB1,381,627,000
(2018: approximately RMB1,210,205,000) and total liabilities of approximately
RMBI,123,689,000 (2018: approximately RMB532,034,000). As at 31 December 2019,
the current ratio was 0.68 (2018: 1.02), calculated on the basis of current assets of
approximately RMB318,609,000 (2018: approximately RMB395,615,000) over current
liabilities of approximately RMB467,206,000 (2018: approximately RMB387,108,000).

The Group's borrowings amounted to approximately RMB73,585,000 (2018:
approximately RMB102,166,000). The Group's borrowings are denominated in Renminbi,
bearing fixed interest rates. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the ratio of the total debts to
total assets, was 5.33% (2018: 8.44%).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The net proceeds the Company obtained from the issuance of new shares through
the Global Offering are approximately RMBI,127 million (equivalent to approximately

HK$ 1,427 million upon listing) after excluding the underwriting fees and relevant expenses.

The remaining net proceeds from the Global Offering of approximately RMBI [4.5 million
as at 31 December 2018 were applied in accordance with the intended uses as disclosed
in the Prospectus of the Company and subsequently revised announcements issued by
the Company dated |6 June 2017, 25 October 2017 and 23 November 2017. As at 3|

December 2019, the net proceeds from the Placing have been fully utilized.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 3| December 2019, the Group with a total net book value of approximately
RMB 14,950,000 were charged as collateral for the Group's borrowings (31 December
2018: approximately RMB20,610,000).
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

Resumption Guidance

The Company announced that there would be a delay in the release of the 2018
and 2019 Annual Results and despatch of its 2018 and 2019 Annual Reports.
Such a delay was due to the Company requiring time to negotiate on and
approve the proposed settlement of Hibaby and consider implications, if any,
on its financial statements, and to provide the former auditors of the Company,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), with further information in connection
with the foregoing when available. The equity transfer agreement was given
to Deloitte, for their consideration near to the finalization of the 2018 Annual
Results in March 2019. An audit committee meeting was convened on 26 March
2019 and it was resolved that the Company would be preparing to engage an
independent internal control consultant to review the internal control procedures
of the Company. There were additional steps that Deloitte would need to take
before signing off on the 2018 Annual Results, and it was expected that the
Company would not be able to (1) publish the 2018 Annual Results on or before
31 March 2019; and (2) despatch the 2018 Annual Report to the Shareholders
on or before 30 April 2019 (the "Delay”).

On 15 May 2019, the Company received a letter from the HKEx, in which the
HKEx stated the following resumption guidance for the Company (“Resumption

Guidance”):

(i) publish all outstanding financial results and address any audit modifications;

(ii) conduct an independent internal control review and demonstrate that
the Company has in place adequate intermnal control and procedures to

comply with the Listing Rules; and

(i) announce all material information for the Company's shareholders and

other investors to appraise the Company's position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Consequently, the Audit Committee engaged BDO Financial Services Limited
(‘BDQ") as an independent internal control consultant to independently review
(the “Initial IC Review') certain interal control procedures of the Company. The
scope of the Initial IC Review included an independent assessment of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering the transaction process of the Equity
Transfer, anti-fraud management, the administration of contracts and seals, the
management of fund and investment; and the management of cash and payment
during the period of | January 2018 to 31 March 2019, the results of which were
published by the Company in its announcement dated 25 March 2020.

On 17 July 2020, the Company appointed Netis Advisory Limited (“Netis") as
its internal control consultant (the “Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct a
comprehensive review (the “Comprehensive IC Review) of the Group's internal
control procedures which will cover all of the Group's significant subsidiaries
and to the extent practicable, its major associated companies, for the period
between | January 2018 and 31 July 2020 in order to comprehensively evaluate
the Group’s internal control systems. Netis issued a draft Comprehensive IC
Review Report (the “Comprehensive IC Review Report”) containing its findings
of the review and internal control recommendations. The Company has since
implemented the internal control recommendations in accordance with the
draft Comprehensive IC Review Report in consultation with Netis. The Audit
Committee reviewed the draft Comprehensive IC Review Report and agreed
with its findings and internal control recommendations in a meeting of the Audit
Committee attended by Netis. The final Comprehensive IC Review Report was
issued on 3 December 2020. For more details regarding the Initial IC Review,
the Comprehensive IC Review, the Resumption Guidance and the resumption
progress, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 31 March
2020, 30 June 2020, 17 July 2020, 30 September 2020, 4 December 2020, 4
January 2021 and 8 January 2021. The Company will keep the public informed
of the latest developments by making further announcement(s) as and when

appropriate.
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 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEWE DT @

(b) Others
Reference are made to announcements of the Company dated |5 June 2020,
2 July 2020 and 16 October 2020. Terms used hereinafter shall have the same

meaning as defined in the announcements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company's listed securities during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, controlling
shareholders or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

business of the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 3|

December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE’S VIEW ON THE DISCLAIMER
OF AUDIT OPINION

The Board and Audit Committee have reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion as set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report, and are confident that the Group will have sufficient
liquidity to finance its operations for the next twelve months and therefore is of the
view that the Group would be able to continue its businesses and operations as a going

concern and the qualification issues will be fully resolved in due course as follows:

I.  Limited Accounting Books and Records of Subsidiary Disposed
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2019, the Group
disposed 92% equity interest in Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital. Upon the
completion of such disposal, the management of the Company (the “Management”)
ceased to involve in the management of Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital.
When the Company's auditor performed their audit which covered the financial
information of Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital before the disposal date (i.e
30 May 2019), the new management of the Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital
refused to co-operate with our auditors, which resulted to such a scope limitation

qualification by our auditors.
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (coNTINUED)
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However, since Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital had already been disposed by
the Group in 2019, such qualification is limited to the period on or before 30 May
2019. In other words, such qualification shall not have impact to the Company's
consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2019 and any consolidated profit

and loss period commencing from 30 May 2019.

Limited Accounting Books and Records of the Hibaby Group

The Group acquired additional 48.53% equity interest in Hibaby on 8 November
2018 (the “Acquisition”), which turned Hibaby Group from an investment in
associated companies to an investment in subsidiaries and Hibaby Group's financial
information was consolidated to the Company's consolidated financial statements
starting from 8 November 2018. However, the Group was unable to complete
its payment for the Acquisition when our auditors were performing their audit
work, which resutted that the sellers of the 48.53% equity interest in Hibaby (the
“Vendors") withheld certain accounting records and evidences related to Hibaby
Group until the Group fully paid for its Acquisition. As a consequence, our auditors

qualified for a scope limitation related to the financial information of Hibaby Group.

The Management is currently actively negotiating with the Vendors at this moment,
and it is expected that the Company will settle the Acquisition consideration
and regain all accounting records of Hibaby Group in the first quarter of 2021.
Therefore, the Management expects that such qualification will not have impact in

the financial year ending 31 December 2021, if not earlier.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Land Use Right

Nearly all our hospitals were running at a loss, in particular, during the COVID-19
pandemic. Therefore, our auditors were concerned on the carrying value of our
property, plant and equipment and land use rights, the amount of impairment and

corresponding effects on depreciation during the periods of their audit.

The Management is in the process of disposing all hospitals which are unlikely to
regain profitability in a short period of time while adding new scope of services
in order to improve profitability of all remaining hospitals. By doing so, the
Management expects that all hospitals within the Group shall becomes profitable
by the end of 2021. As such, the Management believes that such qualification shall
cease to have carried forward effect as of 31 December 2021 and any profit or loss

period commencing from 3| December 2021.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The amount qualified by the auditors were mainly consisted of RMB4 million
goodwill and RMB42 million other intangible assets related to Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital and RMB7.1 million other intangible assets related to Beijing Baiziwan.
Since both hospitals ran into operating losses starting in 2019, our auditors were

concerned on valuation of such assets.

The Management is in the process of disposing Nantong Hemeijia Hospital and
is expected to complete by the Ist half of 2021. Once the disposal of Nantong
Hemeijia Hospital is completed, such qualification related to Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital shall cease to have carried forward impact in our consolidated financial
statements. Further, based on the latest operating data, the Management believes
that Beijing Baiziwan shall be profitable for the year ending 31 December 2021,
which can then justify the carrying value of its intangible assets. In other words,
the Management is confident that such qualification shall cease to have impact to
our audited financial position as at 3|1 December 2021 and profit and loss for any

period starting from 31 December 2021.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss and Contingent
Consideration Receivables

This qualification related to RMBI165 million financial assets held by the Group
against Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital and RMBI | million contingent consideration

receivables from the minority interest in Nantong Hemeijia Hospital.

For the financial assets held by the Group, it is an amount due from Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital, a new obstetrics and gynecology hospital owned by
independent third party. This receivable allows the Group to convert into equity
of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital and becomes the controlling shareholder of
Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. The Management is in the process of disposing such
financial assets to independent third parties at this moment and will consider to
exercise its rights to convert such financial assets into equity of Wuxi HarMoniCare
Hospital should the Management fails to dispose such financial assets in the next
few months. Regardless of the outcome as described above, such financial assets
shall cease to exist in the Group as at 3| December 2021 and therefore, the
Management believes that the qualification related to financial asset shall not carry
forward to Company's consolidation financial position as at 3| December 2021 and

profit and loss for any period starting from 3| December 2021.

Similarly to goodwill as described in 4 above, upon the disposal of Nantong
Hemeijia Hospital as described above, this qualification related to contingent
receivables shall not carry forward to Company's consolidation financial position
as at 31 December 2021 and profit and loss for any period starting from 3|
December 2021.

Trade receivable
This qualification is related to trade receivable in the books of Tai He Tang. The
Management is confident that the Group should be able to collect the full amount

of the trade receivable on or before 31 December 2021,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Prepayment, Deposits and Other Receivables, Other Long-Term Assets and
Loan Receivables

This qualification is related to RMB83 million in the books of Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital and RMB4.6 million in the books of HarMoniCare Medical Management.
Since the Management are in the process of disposing Nantong Hemeijia Hospital,
therefore upon the disposal of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital, the portion of
qualification related to Nantong Heimejia Hospital trade receivables shall not carry
forward to Company's consolidation financial position as at 31 December 2021 and

profit and loss for any period starting from 3| December 2021.

Further, the portion related to HarMoniCare Medical Management was related to
a co-operation with an independent third party to set up a new IVF facilities in the
Jiangxi province and the Group originally invested RMB36 million. This co-operation
had been ceased in 2018 and RMB3 1| million had been refunded as of today. The
Management is confident that the Group should be able to receive the full amount
of RMB4.6 million on or before 31 December 2021.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

This qualification exists due to the tax effect on other qualifications as described
above. Therefore, once the other qualifications described above are resolved, this
qualification will also be resolved. Therefore, the Management is confident that this
qualification shall not have impact on the financial position as at 31 December 2021

and profit and loss for any period starting from 31 December 2021.
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Provision for Onerous Contracts

This qualification is related to various long term non-cancellable leases contracts
for lease commitments as at 3| December 2018. However, upon the adoption of
new accounting standards on lease accounting in 2019 by the Company, all future
lease commitments shall be recognized as liabilities and therefore, such provision
for onerous contracts is no longer necessary. In other words, such qualification
will not have any impact to our Company's consolidated financial position as at 3|
December 2019 and profit and loss for any period starting from 3| December
2019.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group is facing a number of litigation claims, which mainly represented by
the litigation claims for unpaid acquisition consideration of Hibaby and unpaid
construction and service contracts by the Group due to lack of funding in certain

operations.

For all the cases related to Hibaby, the Management is confident to settle all the
claims in the first quarter of 2021, and therefore, the Management believes the
qualification related to Hibaby shall have no carried forward effect to the financial

statements for the year ending 3|1 December 2021, if not earlier.

For all other cases, as those cases are related to loss making subsidiaries to be
disposed by the Group in 2021, the Management is confident that such qualification
shall be removed as of 31 December 2021 and profit and loss for any period

starting from 3| December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Material uncertainty related to going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the consolidated financial statements

based on going concern on the assumptions and measures that:

(@)

The Group is actively disposing certain subsidiaries including but not limited
to Nantong Hemeijia Hospital. The management of the Group is confident
that such disposals would generate at least RMB 150 million cash inflow to
the Group and significantly reduce overall capital commitments of the Group

in2021;

The management has ceased or delayed nearly all construction of new
hospitals and new investments until the Group's net current liabilities

situation is resolved;
The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales, administrative

expenses and capital expenditures;

The Group s also maximising its sale effort and implementing comprehensive

policies to improve operating cash flows.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion and the basis

thereof. The Management has reviewed the impact of the Disclaimer of Opinion

and the action plan above. There was no disagreement between the views of the

Audit Committee and the Management in respect of (i) the Disclaimer Opinion,

and (ii) the Company’s plan to address the Disclaimer of Opinion above.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESERSHREEAR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuming (B EBH), aged 51, founder of our Group, is the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the president of our Company, mainly responsible for overall
strategic planning and business development of our Group. He is also the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lin joined our Group in December 2005. He served as
the general manager of Shanxi Modem Hospital from August 2003 to July 2004, and the
executive director and general manager of Beijing Modern Woman Hospital Investment
Management Co, Ltd. LRI R L F B IRE B IR AR 2 F]) from July 2004 to March
2012, both mainly responsible for general management and operation of the two hospitals.
He established Bosheng Medical and has served as its chairman and president since
December 2007, mainly responsible for general management and operation of Bosheng
Medical. Mr. Lin has also served as the executive director of some other members of
the Group, such as (i) Wuhan Modern Hospital since December 2005, (ii) Guangzhou
Woman Hospital since July 2008; (iii) Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital
since March 2009; (iv) Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital since
May 2009; (v) Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Hospital since June 2009; (vi) Fuzhou
Modern Hospital since January 2010; (vii) Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital since July
2010; (viii) Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital since March 201 I; (ix) Beijing HarMoniCare
Hospital since June 201 [; (x) Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital since August 2013; and
(xi) Chongging Modern Hospital since April 2014. Mr. Lin studied law at Central China
Normal University from March 2008 to January 2010 and obtained a bachelor's degree in
business management in July 2012 through online education. Mr. Lin is the sole director of
Homecare and the brother of Mr. Lin Yuhua and Mr. Lin Yurong, each is our substantial

Shareholder. Mr. Lin is also the brother of Mr. Lin Yuguo, our non-executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Mr. Yang Guo (%), aged 37, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of our Company since August 2020. He has more than |5 years of working experience.
Mr. Yang worked as a vice president and chief executive officer responsible for strategy
formulation and operation management of Beijing Century Yaolan Network Technology
Co, Ltd. (E R EERE M AR 2 A]) successively. Then he served as a vice
president responsible for assisting the chairman of the group in participating in post-
investment management and innovative integration of group cluster companies of Shanghai
Tianyi Investment (Group) Co, Ltd. (E/@XIEIRE (5£E) AR F]) and acted as a
chief executive officer responsible for strategy formulation and operation management of
Chengdu Tiandiwang Information Technology Co., Ltd. (A #RMABE BRHEBARAR)),
which was held by Shanghai Tianyi Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. ((E/EX{EIRE (/)
BPRAR]). Mr. Yang graduated from Jilin University (FF#AAE3) with a bachelor's degree
in engineering and from China Europe International Business School (FFBXEIFR T 5 &8
Br) with a master's degree in business administration. Mr. Yang was a director of Bencao
Zhenxuan (Chengdu) Network Technology Co., Ltd. (NEB3&E (B &) BRI AR A
al), a company established in the People’s Republic of China and engaged in the internet
business, which was deregistered in June 2020 due to voluntary cessation of its business.
Mr. Yang confirmed that the company was solvent at the time of it being deregistered and
there was no wrongful act on his part leading to such deregistration and he is not aware
of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of the
deregistration, and that his involvement in the above company was part and parcel of his
services as a director of such company and that no misconduct or misfeasance had been

involved in the deregistration of such company.
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Mr. Wei Rongda (B&83&), aged 37, is an executive Director and a vice president of
our Company since August 2020. He is currently the general manager of the operation
management department of the Group. Mr. Wei joined Shanxi Modem Woman Hospital
(LFEIRARIFEEPT) in March 2005 and was the general manager of Weihai Modern
Woman Hospital (Bl/BIRRIBERT) from April 2008 to December 2012. Mr. Wei
acted as the general manager of Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital (28T fIXIRE
E205%), a subsidiary of the Group from December 2012 to July 2020, and a district general
manager of the Group who was in charge of the operation management of Heilongjiang
HarMoniCare Hospital (FR8E)LFMEFEEFT), Wuhan Modern Hospital (ELER R
EP7) and Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital (#E$5F1EEFT) from September 2018 to
July 2020, and began to serve as the general manager of the operation management
department of the Group from July 2020. Mr. Wei holds a master's degree in project
management from China University of Geosciences (F1 B A £2). Ms. Zhang Jinghua
(SRALEE), the spouse of Mr. Wei, is the sister of Ms. Zhang Qinghua (SREZE), who is
the spouse of Mr. Lin Yuming (the chairman, an executive director and president of the

Company).

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuguo (PR EEH), aged 48, is the brother of Mr. Lin Yuming and a non-executive
Director. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lin joined our
Group in July 2014 and has served as a director of HarMoniCare Management since
July 2014. He also serves as a director of Honeycare Intemnational Investment Limited,
our substantial Shareholder. Mr. Lin is the organizer of Changsha Liren Obstetrics and
Gynecology Hospital (RABAIRERFT) since March 2007. Mr. Lin has served as a
director of Bosheng Medical since December 2007. He has also served as the chairman of
the board of Shanghai Mayo Hospital Investment Co, Ltd. (E/8XREIRITEEEER
A R]) since August 2008, mainly responsible for the general management of the company.
Mr. Lin obtained a certificate of completion in modem hospital management from PKU-
HKUST ShenZhen-HongKong Institution in May 2006. Mr. Lin also obtained an executive

master of business administration degree from Fudan University in January 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Mr. Qiu Jianwei (EBE1&), aged 44, is a non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Qiu had been the assistant general manager of the Direct
Investment Department of Taikang Assets Management Co., Ltd. and the investment
director of Taikang Community Investment Company Limited (‘Taikang Community")
since he joined Taikang Life Insurance Company Limited (“Taikang”) in 2002. Mr. Qiu has
been the director of TK Harmony Limited since November 2016, the vice president and
chief investor officer of Taikang Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited since April 2018
to December 2019, the general manager of TaiKang Healthcare Fund Management Co.
Ltd since December 2018 and the chief executive officer of Taikang Community since
December 2019, mainly responsible for the investment in and operation management
of commercial real estate, high-end elderly communities, tertiary hospitals, specialist
chain medical institutions, reform of private hospitals and other projects in the first and
second tier core cities in China such as Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Sanya,
Suzhou, Nanjing, Chengdu, Wuhan, Hangzhou, Nanchang, Xiamen, Shenyang, Changsha,
Nanning, Hefei, Wenzhou and Kunming, respectively, which cover an aggregated area of
approximately 4 million m? with a total investment of over RMB70 billion. Mr. Qiu was
graduated in Beijing Normal University and obtained a bachelor's degree in international
economics. He is also a postgraduate of Finance of the Research Institute of The People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Qiu holds the Certification of Fund Professional of Asset Management
Association of China and has become a member representative of Shanghai Insurance

Exchange since 5 December 2016.
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Mr. Xu Jun (), aged 52, is a non-executive Director and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Xu is the managing director/person-in-charge of Strategic
Equity Investment Department of Taikang Assets Management Co., Ltd. since April 2016
and is responsible for strategic equity investment. He has been appointed as a director
of Sichuan He Fu Yi Yi Group Company Limited (F0)I| FI{EBEEERHBR A )
since September 2016, a director of TK Harmony Limited since November 2016, a legal
person and director of Beijing Tongtai Glory Enterprise Management Company Limited
GERBREBELEEEBM AT since April 2017 to March 2019, a director of
Beijing Jinsong Dental Hospital Investment Management Company Limited (155 SH#A0
fEEEf it B B AR AF]) from August 2017 to October 2019, a director of TaiKang
Healthcare Fund Management Co. Ltd since December 2018, a director of TK Healthcare
Investment Limited since April 2019, a director and legal representative of Shanghai
Shengxu Health Management Consulting Co., Ltd* (/8 MEREREHRERA
@) since July 2019, a director of Shanghai Jiaoteng Medical Management Co,, Ltd. (/8
REEZEEEAR AR since March 2020, a director of TK Dental Limited since July
2020 and a director of Dingdang Medicine (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (7] &R 245}
FEBEBRRAR]) since September 2020. Mr. Xu was a senior analyst of Exis Consulting
Company in New York, United States of America from February 1995 to March 1997
responsible for the analysis of bonds in emerging markets; director of Bank Paribas in New
York, United States of America from April 1997 to May 2002 responsible for bonds and
foreign exchange business; deputy general manager of First-Trust Fund Management in
Shanghai from October 2002 to May 2004 responsible for investment research; general
manager of China Region of Principal Financial Group from June 2004 to October 2005
responsible for the group’s business in China; deputy general manager of the headquarters
of CCB Principal Asset Management, Beijing from November 2005 to January 2010
responsible for financial engineering and risk management etc,; general manager of China
Region of Ashmore Investment Management Company from February 2010 to April 2016
responsible for the group’s business in China. Mr. Xu was graduated in Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and obtained a bachelor's degree in Applied Physics. He obtained a doctorate

degree in Physics from Columbia University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Fang Lan (J3/&), aged 50, joined our Group in March 2015 and is an independent
non-executive Director. She is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Prior to joining our
Group, Ms. Fang is the chairman of the board of directors of Shanghai Krdream Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Krdream") since August 2010, mainly responsible for overall
management and operation. Ms. Fang served as the finance director of InBev Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (RIBEEE (LE)BMAF]) from June 2007 to June 2010,
mainly responsible for financial management. Ms. Fang has also served as an independent
director of Zhejiang Hexin Industry Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002343) from May 2014 to August 2015. Ms. Fang
obtained a bachelor's degree in science from Oxford Brookes University in 2007. Ms. Fang
obtained a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) certificate from the Shanghai Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in December 2009, and an Associate of Chartered Certified
Accountant (ACCA) certificate from the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in March 2006. Ms. Fang also obtained a certificate of completion in independent director

qualification training from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in April 2014.
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Mr. Cai Jiangnan (387LF), aged 63, joined our Group in March 2015, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cai assumed
various positions including human services program planner, reimbursement analyst,
and contract program coordinator at the Center for Health Information and Analysis at
Massachusetts from April 1999 to June 2012. Mr. Cai has served as a full-time professor
in economics and the director at the Centre for Healthcare Management and Policy
of China Europe International Business School (FEXEIFR TiZFc) since April 2012.
Mr. Cai has also served as an independent director of Zhejiang Dian Diagnostics Co.,
Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 300244), from
May 2014 to September 2020 and an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co,, Ltd., a company listed on the HKEx (Stock code: 2607) and
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 601607), since June 2016. Mr. Cai was appointed
as an independent director and independent non-executive director of WuXi AppTec
Co,, Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 603259) and
HKEx (Stock code: 2359) respectively, with effect from March 2017. and an independent
director of Betta Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 300558), since November 2019. Mr. Cai obtained a master's
degree in economics from Fudan University in 1985 and a doctorate's degree in
philosophy from Brandeis University in February 1997. Mr. Cai also obtained a certificate
in training for senior management of public companies from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in April 2014. He obtained a Sun Yefang Award in economic science paper in 1991 from
Sun Yefang Foundation (a7 & EBERIZEE®), and an Excellent Paper Award in
Shanghai Federation of Social Science Associations Seventh Annual Academic Seminar
from Shanghai Federation of Social Science Associations (LA ERIEZRIAE) in

2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (#RZ8), aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director
of our Company since August 2020. She is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She has over 20 years" experience in accounting. Ms. Hsu graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business administration. Ms. Hsu
had been working in Ernst & Young for 18 years and was a partner of Ermnst & Young
before she retired from the firm in February 201 1. She is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Hsu is currently an independent non-executive director of Richly Field China
Development Limited (stock code: 0313), Perfect Shape Medical Limited (stock code:
1830), China Display Optoelectronics Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 334),
and Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code: 6828), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the HKEx, and Perfect Optronics Limited (stock code: 831 1),
the shares of which are listed on the GEM Board of HKEx.. Ms. Hsu was an independent
non-executive director of BC Technology Group Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the HKEx, stock code: 0863) from April 2012 to May 2018, and an
independent non-executive director of Circle International Holdings Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the National Stock Exchange of Australia (NSX), stock code: CCH)
from September 2017 to May 2020.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the biographical details of Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Yang Guo and Mr. Wei Rongda, please

see “— Directors — Executive Directors '

Mr. Chen Longzhen (FREE#H), aged 63, is the chief financial officer and a vice president
of our Company since August 2020. Mr. Chen had been the acting chief financial officer
of the Group from December 2019 to August 2020. Mr. Chen served as the finance
manager of Shandong Huimin Huarun Textile Co,, Ltd. (LR BREBHBER A R)
from December 1999 to October 2001. Mr. Chen successively served as an assistant of
general manager and finance director of China Resources Jinhua Co,, Ltd. (ZEE#RZEMR
MAEBR 2R (currently known as Skyworth Digital Co., Ltd. (Bl FRHBRE A
&]), listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000810)) from October 200
to February 2004. Mr. Chen served as a finance director of Shandong Juli Co., Ltd. (LLIE
ENBRMBR AR (currently known as Weichai Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd. (4425
WA (A B R A D), listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000880)) from
March 2004 to August 2005. Mr. Chen served as a finance director of Gaode Zhongcai
Technology Co., Ltd. (RERFRHZBMAF]) from August 2006 to March 2008,
and a finance director of Xiamen Tianwei Industrial Co., Ltd. (EFIREEXERA
a]) from March 2008 to May 2010. Mr. Chen served as a vice finance director and vice
director in securities investment department of Bosheng Medical Investment Co.,, Ltd. (1&
HEBEIRERMNBMAF]) from June 2010 to February 2015, mainly responsible for
management of finance, securities and investment. Mr. Chen served as the chief financial
officer of the Group from March 2015 to August 2017, mainly responsible for general
finance management of the Group. Mr. Chen obtained an associate degree in industry
accounting from Shandong TV University (LR BIEERAL) in July 1986, and studied
in economics management at Shandong Cadres Correspondence University (LI 5 # &8
BARER) from July 1994 to June 1997. Mr. Chen also obtained the qualification of senior

accountant from Human Resources and Social Security Department of Shandong Province

(LB ANE R IRFEEE) in November 1997.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Mr. Li Wenfeng (ZE3L[B), aged 65, joined our Group in January 2015, is the uncle of
Mr. Lin Yuming and a vice president of our Company. Mr. Li has served as vice president
of HarMoniCare Management since January 2015, mainly responsible for procurement
and internal administration. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager of Shanxi Modem
Hospital from August 2003 to December 2007, and the vice president of Bosheng
Medical from December 2007 to December 2014, mainly responsible for management
of logistics department, audit department, president’s office, information department and
medical management department. Mr. Li has also served as the supervisor of some other
members of the Group, such as (i) Shanxi Wo De Investment since October 2009; (ii)
Tai He Tang since April 2013; (iii) Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital since
December 2013; (iv) Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013;
(v) Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013; (vi) Guiyang HarMoniCare
Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital since August 2014; and (vii) Chongging Modern
Hospital since April 2014. Mr. Li has served as a director of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital,
a member of the Group since July 2017. Mr. Li obtained a certificate of completion in
modem hospital management from School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University

in September 2010.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in provision of high-quality
healthcare services to women and children. Tai He Tang, our subsidiary, is engaged in
distribution and sales of pharmaceuticals and medical devices (which include medical
consumables) to associated companies and Independent Third Parties. The Company is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the healthcare

industry specializing in ob-gyn and paediatrics.

A list of the Company's subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation, principal
activities and particulars of their issued shares/paid up capital, is set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on the Group'’s
future business development and the financial and operational key performance indicators
employed by the Directors in measuring the performance of our business are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 6 of this annual report, “Financial
Summary" on page 7 of this annual report, and “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview and Outlook” on pages 9 to 12 of this annual report. The financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Principal risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group, key relationship between the Group and its employees, customers
and suppliers, environmental policies of the Group and compliance with the relevant laws

and regulations which have significant impact are set out below.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties
The Group's results and operations are subject to various factors with the key risks

summarised below:

Reputation risk

Our business depends significantly on the soundness of our reputation. Failure to develop,
maintain and enhance our reputation, or any negative publicity or allegations in the
media against us, may adversely affect the level of market recognition of, and trust in, our
services, and failure to properly manage our physicians or other medical staff's clinical
activities may expose us to medical disputes, which could result in a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our reputation and

business may be harmed accordingly.

In order to effectively protect the reputation of the Group, our department responsible
for publicity monitors around the clock and swiftly reacts to public opinions and
information, and actively collects feedback from our customers and employees, with a
view to protecting their benefits and legal rights. In addition, all of our hospitals implement
The Procedures and Management on Complaints Handling to improve satisfaction of our
customers. The Group has an Anti-Corruption Policy in place and relevant departments

assess risk of corruption regularly.

Customer risk
As we provide mid-to-high-end healthcare services, our business, financial condition and
results of operations are subject to changes in patient preference, consuming power,

consumer confidence index and general economic conditions in our respective markets.

Adhering to the customer-oriented principle, we actively satisfy our customers’ demands
for high-quality healthcare services by providing one-stop and variable services. Meanwhile,
we collect the opinions and suggestions of our customers from various channels to
improve the quality of our healthcare services. In the course of business operation, we
conduct market analysis on existing and potential customers to fully understand the

change of preference, consumption power and other indicators of customers.
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Talent risk

If we are unable to attract, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified physicians,
management staff and other hospital personnel, our hospital operations could be
materially and adversely affected. Please refer to the section headed “Staff” below for our

policies regarding recruiting and retaining our staff members.

See the section headed “Staff" below for further details regarding the measures we

undertake to attract, retain and develop talents.

Key Relationships

The Group ardently believes that employees, customers and partners are key to our
sustainable and stable development. We are committed to establishing a close relationship
with our employees, enhancing cooperation with our partners and providing high-quality

services to our customers so as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

Staff

Our staff is regarded as one of the most important resources of the Group. The Group
has been endeavouring to provide our staff with a fair and harmonious workplace where
individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds are treated equally. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and opportunities for career advancement based on employees'
performance. The Group grants share options and share awards to outstanding
employees to recognise and reward the employees who have contributed to the Group's
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings, including internal
trainings and courses offered by professional organisations, so as to keep them abreast of

the latest development of the Company, medical industry and various businesses.

Customers

In order to provide high-quality and safe medical services to customers, we strictly
abide by the health policy for national medical and health industry and the interational
standards promulgated by the JCI and adhere to our “customer-oriented” service
philosophy. We provide every patient with experienced medical staff and advanced
technologies and facilities for diagnosis and treatment to best satisfy the medical needs
of our customers. Meanwhile, we value feedback from customers and always seek to
understand their thoughts through services feedback and customer satisfaction surveys.
In addition, we also set up a customer service hotline to respond to any feedback and

complaints from customers.
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We generally do not extend any credit period to our patients. We allow a credit period
of approximately 60 to 180 days for the hospital services provided to the patients which
are settled by and due from medical and commercial insurance programs, and less than
90 days for the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices after issuing invoice. For an
aging analysis of our trade receivable, please refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

Suppliers

We firmly believe that our suppliers are equally important in providing high-quality medical
services. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among other things, their product range,
pricing, reputation, service quality and delivery schedule. We require our suppliers to
obtain requisite licenses and permits to operate their business, such as business licenses
and GMP Certificates and/or GSP Certificates. We proactively communicate with our
suppliers to ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and high-standard
medical equipment and drugs, and adopt a centralised procurement system to better
control the quality of the medical supplies. We clearly state our professional integrity and
specify various requirements including regulatory compliance, anticorruption and other

business ethics in each contract we entered into with our suppliers.

Trade payables represent outstanding amounts due to our suppliers and other third
parties. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally granted on a 0 to 90
days credit term. For an aging analysis of our trade payables, please refer to note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Environmental Policies

We are subject to various PRC laws, rules and regulations with regard to environmental
matters, including hospital sanitation, disease control, disposal of medical waste, and
discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive substances. We have established
systems and procedures in place concerning environmental protection, such as requiring
all our hospitals to engage qualified service providers to dispose of medical waste and
radioactive substances. For further details regarding various environmental policies
applicable to us and our compliance measures, please refer to the Company's 2019
Environmental, Social and Governance Report. During the Review Period, our businesses
were in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations with regard to environmental

protection in all material aspects.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in the
PRC while the Company is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the HKEx. Our establishments and operations
accordingly should comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Cayman
Islands and Hong Kong. During the Review Period, our businesses were in compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong in all

material aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the section
headed “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income” on

page 92 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 3|

December 2019 (2018: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the year ended 3|
December 2019 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 3| December
2019 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on
pages 95 to 96 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, and subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association, the share premium account of the Company may be applied for
distribution to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
distribution is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of distributable reserves, including
share premium and retained profits of the Company was RMB242,494,000 (2018:
RMB576,983,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
Review Period are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on page 7 of this

annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Review Period amounted
to RMB30,624 (2018: RMB/1,177).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 3| December 2019, the Group with a total net book value of approximately
RMB 14,950,000 were charged as collateral for the Group's borrowings (31 December
2018: approximately RMB20,610,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no individual patient has contributed over 5%
of our total revenue. During the Review Period, our five largest customers were corporate
customers engaged in the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices business, who in

aggregate contributed to less than 5% of our revenue during the Review Period.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
2542% (2018: 10.9%) of the total purchases of the Group for the Review Period and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 17.77% (2018: 8.73%) of

our total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or Shareholders that owned more than 5% of
the issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest customers or the

five largest suppliers of the Group during the Review Period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are

as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuming (Chairman and President)

Mr. Fang Zhifeng (Vice President) (resigned on 31 July 2020)

Mr. Zhao Xingli (resigned on 4 June 2020)

Mr. Yang Guo (Chief Executive Office) (appointed on || August 2020)
Mr. Wei Rongda (Vice President) (appointed on || August 2020)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Yuguo

Mr. Qiu Jianwei

Mr. Xu Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kong Aiguo (resigned on 24 August 2020)

Ms. Fang Lan

Mr. Cai Jiangnan

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (appointed on 24 August 2020)

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Xu
Jun, Mr. Qiu Jianwei and Ms. Fang Lan, who have held their offices as directors for more
than three years, as well as Mr. Lin Yuguo and Mr. Cai Jiangnan shall retire as Directors at
the forthcoming AGM, and Mr. Yang Guo, Mr. Wei Rongda and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen
who were appointed by the Board during the Review Period, shall hold office only until
the forthcoming AGM pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association. All of the
above retiring Directors are eligible for re-election and will offer themselves for re-election

thereat.

THE BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 33 of

this annual report.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE

£%
NEESE RS AEER R ANNES
m :

PITES

WEBRSE (EEEE)

HEEE (F/4827) (FR20209F7 A31 REHE)
HE A S (20206 B 14BBHT)
WBBIE A (Fh774821) (R202058 A || BEZAE)
MEER & (5/4830) (20058 A 1| BEERAE)

FHTES
MEBEE
EpfEiE
REXE

BUEHTES

LEBELE (7202058 A 24 BEHT)
HEZT

ETRNAE

BEHLE (R2020F8 24 BERT)

REERMAIES4() K MERALE  RE
x4 BRELERFERLT (BEETESH
BRB=F) ARMERXAERZIMAL
EREERFRAFAG LREZFHBE - M
RIEZRZMANESI) K - BRIKE  FrEE
RERGEFLLTROBEHRARESZEE
I EMEEEEAREEZERERRBSF
KAt - IELMRAESHHEERE
BUEENEERRBFAEG LEEEF -

EEREREBAEHE
NAEERERBEEABBHEABIENAK
BEUEBENESRSREEAS | —

=M B

)



SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a three-year service contract with the
Company, subject to termination before expiry by either party giving not less than one

month notice in writing to the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
and shall be terminable by either party giving not less than one month notice in writing to

the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in the Group

are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 3,086 employees (31 December 2018: 3,983),
of which 3,054 employees (31 December 2018: 3,948) were involved in the general
hospital services and management sector and 32 employees (31 December 2018: 35) in
the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices sector. The remuneration policy and
packages are reviewed annually by the management and the Remuneration Committee.
The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work experience
and the prevailing market rate. The remuneration packages include basic salary, double
pay, commission, insurance and mandatory provident fund. The Group has adopted the
Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme to provide incentives
or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the

Group.
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The Group also organises professional and vocational trainings to its employees.

The remuneration of the Directors is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board. The relevant Director's experience, duties and responsibilities,
time commitment, the Company's performance and the prevailing market conditions are

taken into consideration in determining the emolument of the Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company believes that all of the independent non-executive Directors are

independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr. Lin Yuming and Homecare, our then Controlling
Shareholders, have undertaken to the Company in a deed of non-competition that,
subject to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus, they would not, and would procure
that none of their associates (other than any member of the Group) will directly or
indirectly engage in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or may compete
with the Group's business in the PRC or any other places in which the Group carries on
business. Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of their compliance with
the deed of non-competition for disclosure in this annual report during the year ended 31
December 2019. No new business opportunity was informed by them as at 31 December
2019.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the implementation of the deed
of non-competition and are of the view that the non-competition undertakings have been

complied with by Mr. Lin Yuming and Homecare for the year ended 3| December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as of 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business which

competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 3| December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

were as follows:

Long positions in Shares
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Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the

Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by

the Shareholders on 9 June 2015, and became effective on the Listing Date.

Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for
Eligible Participants (defined below) for their contribution or potential contribution

to the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries.

2. Eligible participants
Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules, the Board may at its sole discretion grant options to any full-time
or part-time employees of the Company, its subsidiaries or any entities in which
the Group holds any equity interest, including (a) any executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or invested entities, (b) any executives (including president, senior vice
president, vice president of the Group), central management (including general
manager, director, deputy general manager and deputy director), management of
president’s office (including officer and deputy officer), department managers of
divisions under respective centres, general managers and department managers
of commercial management companies, senior management (including general
manager and deputy general manager) of project companies and persons holding
managerial positions of respective departments of the Company, its subsidiaries or

invested entities.
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Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of six years from 9 June 2015.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed
76,722,908, being 10% of the total issued Shares as of the Listing Date (without
taking into account the partial exercise of the over-allotment option) representing
10.129% of the total issued shares as at the date of this annual report. As at the date
of this annual report, there is no outstanding share options of the Share Option

Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme in any |2-month period up

to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the total Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for options

An offer of the grant shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant for
a period of not more than |5 days from the date on which it is made. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant of option which

the Company has subsequently waived.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised

The minimum period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme shall be one
year after the date on which the option is granted. The Board may in its absolute

discretion impose further restrictions on the exercise of the option.
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8. Period within which the Shares must be taken up 8. ARBR G 2 HR

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on the exercise R EARE P N ARE R B 2 B st

of the option, any option may be exercised one year after the date on which the —FR&7E - EE()BEEZBERA

option is granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of (i) a six-year FHIRE  RG)EREEER 2B (A

period from the date of such grant; and (i) the expiration of the Share Option REERE)RIL  HESESARIEYH

Scheme. BRI TR AR I o

9. Basis of determining the subscription price 9. RBEETEX

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares upon exercise of R AT B A E MR EB RO =R

an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price determined by the Board but in BRinE% ([{TEER]) BRESSR

any event shall be at least the highest of: T BEEAERL T MHERA T RS

25 0

() the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily () EERTBRERS(LWEAREX
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted (must be a B) R EEZATAHK LK
business day); miE

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily (i EBEXRTERERDANADES?
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date BEBRAERKR LHKHEZ
on which the option is granted; while if the Company has been listed for less FHE: WARRBELETARR
than five business days, the new issue price shall be regarded as the closing BERE - HBETERERLT
price for the business day in any period prior to the listing; and AIETEAR & B m(E © &

(i) the nominal value of the Share. (i) ARIPEEE °

No options were outstanding pursuant to the Share Option Scheme as at 3| December — E{ZE2019F 12 A31 B + AAFWERIZER

2019. Options previously granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme were all lapsed RERT B M AT TR BERRAE - B Z=2017F 12 A

and have been cancelled by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017. 3IBIEEE - SAREBRE SR AR
IRHED 2 EPRA - WERHALRRIEUH
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RESTRICTED SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 2| December 2017, the RSI Scheme of the Company was approved and adopted by
the Board.

(1)  Purpose
The purpose of the RSI Scheme are (i) to recognise and motivate the key
management personnel and persons who made special contribution to the
Company; (i) to enhance the value of the Company and further align the interests
of the selected participants directly with those of the shareholders of the Company
through ownership of Shares; and (iii) to help the Company to retain the selected

participants in attaining the long-term business goals of the Company.

(2)  Eligible Persons
Pursuant to the RSI Scheme, the Board may, from time to time, in its sole and
absolute discretion, select eligible persons to be selected participant(s) (the “RSI
Participants”) after taking into various factors as they deem appropriate and
determine the number and the price of award shares to be awarded to each
selected participant. Eligible persons shall cover key management personnel
(including the directors and mid-level and senior management, core experts and

core employees), and persons who made special contribution to the Group.

(3)  Administration
The RSI Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board and the
Trustee (as defined below) in accordance with rules of the RSl Scheme and the
trust deed in respect of the appointment of the Trustee for the administration of
the RSI Scheme. The Board may act through the authorised representatives of the
Company to give instructions or notices to the Trustee on matters in connection
with the operation and administration of the RSI Scheme and the trust. The
Company has appointed The Core Trust Company Limited as the trustee (the
“Trustee”) to assist with the administration and vesting of award shares granted
pursuant to the RSI Scheme. The Trustee shall hold the Shares under the RS
Scheme and any economic benefits to be derived from such Shares in accordance

with the RSI Scheme Rules and the terms of the trust deed.
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Maximum Limit

The Board shall not make any further award of award shares which will resut in the
aggregate number of award shares awarded by the Board throughout the duration
of the RSI Scheme to exceed 5% of the total number of issued Shares of the

Company as at 2| December 2017.

Operation

The Board may, from time to time, in its sole and absolute discretion, select the RSI
Participants after taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate and
determine the number and the price of the award shares to be awarded to each

RSI Participant.

Pursuant to the RSI Scheme Rules, the Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the
purchase price and the related expenses from the Group's internal resources for
the grant of the award shares and the Trustee shall apply the purchase price to
purchase from the open market all of the award shares to be awarded under
the RSI Scheme and shall hold such award shares until they are vested to the RS
Participants in accordance with the RSI Scheme, the Trust Deed and/or terms
of specific grants. For the avoidance of doubt, all Shares purchased as aforesaid
shall only be used for allocation to the RSI Participants in accordance with the RSI

Scheme rules.

Restrictions

No award shall be made to RSI Participants, no payment for the purchase of Shares
shall be made to the Trustee and no directions or recommendation to acquire
Shares shall be given to the Trustee under the RSI Scheme where any Director is in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or where
dealings by Directors are prohibited under any code or requirement of the Listing

Rules and all applicable laws from time to time.
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(10)

Vesting and Lapse

A RS| Participant shall be entitled to receive the award shares held by the Trustee
in accordance with the vesting schedule. Details of the vesting schedule, vesting
conditions and terms of lapse of the grant will be stipulated in individual award

letters to be sent to the RSI Participants by the Company.

Voting Rights
The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares held under

the trust including but not limited to the award shares.

Duration and Termination

The RSI Scheme shall be effective from the 21 December 2017 and shall continue
in full force and effect for a term of 10 years or such date of early termination
as determined by the Board provided that such termination shall not affect any

subsisting rights of any RSI Participant.

Alteration of the RSI Scheme
The RSI Scheme may be altered in any respect from time to time by a resolution of
the Board provided that such alteration shall not affect any subsisting rights of any

RSI Participants.

As at 31 December 2019, an aggregate of 37,858,000 Shares were held by the RSI

Trustee, representing approximately 4.99% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this

annual report, which is also the number of Shares available for grant under the RSI

Scheme. As at the date of this annual report and during the year ended 31 December

2019, no award shares has been awarded or agreed to be awarded under the RSI

Scheme, nor has any awarded shares been cancelled.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

Long positions in Shares
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
RREE£8 BEME BEROEE  BRESEIH%
Homecare!" Beneficial owner 218,252,390 2878
ESBEAA
Ms. Zhang Qing Hua® Interest of spouse 218,252,390 2878
REFZLO AofEgas
Honeycare International Investment Limited ~ Beneficial owner 61,824,518 8.15
BB A
TK Harmony® Beneficial owner 78,621,620 10.37
ESBEAA
Shanghai Taiyuan® Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 1037
LEFRO R EE S
Beijing Taikang Investment Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.37
Management Co., Ltd.®)
EREEREERERLAAO REpLEER
Taikang Assets Management Co,, Ltd.® Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.37
FEEAEEEARAM AR RIEAE RS
Taikang Life Insurance Co,, Ltd.®) Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.37
ZEASRBARETLAC RIpEE RS
Beneficial owner 121,875,507 [6.07
Ea#AA
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
RREE£8 EEME BEROEBE  HFRENEIH%
Taikang Insurance Group Inc.®) Interest of controlled corporation 200,497,127 2644
ZRRBEBRNHERLEO R LB ER
Harmony Caret® Beneficial owner 53,669,975 7.08

ESBEAA

Mr. Lin Yuhua Interest of controlled corporation 53,669,975 7.8
MEERLS R EE S
Mr. Lin Yurong® Interest of controlled corporation 53,669,975 7.8
MERFLE® RIEAE RS
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Notes:
Homecare is wholly owned by Mr. Lin Yuming.

2. Ms. Zhang Qing Hua is the wife of Mr. Lin Yuming and is therefore deemed to be interested
in the Shares that Mr. Lin Yuming is interested.

3. TK Harmony is directly wholly-owned by Shanghai Taiyuan which is in turn owned as to
99.99% by Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. which is owned as to 100% by Taikang Insurance
Group Inc. Beijing Taikang Investment Management Co., Ltd. is the General Partner of
Shanghai Taiyuan and is owned as to 80% by Taikang Assets Management Co,, Ltd. which
is in turn owned as to 99.41% by Taikang Insurance Group Inc. Therefore, each of Shanghai
Taiyuan, Beijing Taikang Investment Management Co., Ltd, Taikang Assets Management
Co, Ltd, Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and Taikang Insurance Group Inc. is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by TK Harmony and Taikang Insurance Group Inc. is deemed to

be interested in the Shares held by Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

4. As far as was known to the Directors, Harmony Care is owned as to 63.05% by Mr. Lin
Yurong and 36.95% by Mr. Lin Yuhua. Therefore, each of Mr. Lin Yurong and Mr. Lin Yuhua

is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Harmony Care.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors have not been
notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which shall be disclosed
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme, at no time during the year ended 3| December 2019 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisted in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of the Review

Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, there was no connected transaction of the Group which has to

be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Related party transactions that occurred during the Review Period, as set out in Note 42
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, also fall under the definition
of connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules and are fully exempt

from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of

the Group during the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or officer of the Company acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs and
damages which he may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’

and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme as

disclosed on pages 44 to 49 of this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were

entered into by the Company, or existed during the Review Period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REVIEW PERIOD

(@)

Resumption Guidance

The Company announced that there would be a delay in the release of the
2018 Annual Results and despatch of its 2018 Annual Report. Such a delay
was due to the Company requiring time to negotiate on and approve the
proposed settlement of Hibaby and consider implications, if any, on its financial
statements, and to provide the former auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), with further information in connection with the foregoing
when available. The equity transfer agreement was given to Deloitte, for their
consideration near to the finalization of the 2018 Annual Results in March 2019.
An audit committee meeting was convened on 26 March 2019 and it was resolved
that the Company would be preparing to engage an independent internal control
consultant to review the internal control procedures of the Company. There were
additional steps that Deloitte would need to take before signing off on the 2018
Annual Results, and it was expected that the Company would not be able to (I)
publish the 2018 Annual Results on or before 31 March 2019; and (2) despatch the
2018 Annual Report to the Shareholders on or before 30 April 2019 (the “Delay”).

On 15 May 2019, the Company received a letter from the HKEX, in which the
HKEx stated the following resumption guidance for the Company (‘Resumption

Guidance”):

(

) publish all outstanding financial results and address any audit modifications;

(i) conduct an independent internal control review and demonstrate that the
Company has in place adequate intermnal control and procedures to comply

with the Listing Rules; and

(i) announce all material information for the Company's shareholders and other

investors to appraise the Company's position.
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Consequently, the Audit Committee engaged BDO Financial Services Limited
('BDQ") as an independent internal control consultant to independently review (the
“Initial IC Review") certain internal control procedures of the Company. The scope
of the Initial IC Review included an independent assessment of the internal control
systems of the Group, covering the transaction process of the Equity Transfer, anti-
fraud management, the administration of contracts and seals, the management of
fund and investment; and the management of cash and payment during the period
of | January 2018 to 31 March 2019, the results of which were published by the
Company in its announcement dated 25 March 2020.

On 17 July 2020, the Company appointed Netis Advisory Limited (“Netis”) as
its internal control consultant (the “Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct a
comprehensive review (the “Comprehensive IC Review") of the Group’s internal
control procedures which will cover all of the Group's significant subsidiaries and
to the extent practicable, its major associated companies, for the period between
| January 2018 and 31 July 2020 in order to comprehensively evaluate the Group’s
internal control systems. Netis issued a draft Comprehensive IC Review report
(the “Comprehensive IC Review Report”) containing its findings of the review
and intemnal control recommendations. The Company has since implemented the
internal control recommendations in accordance with the draft Comprehensive
IC Review Report in consultation with Netis. The Audit Committee reviewed the
draft Comprehensive IC Review Report and agreed with its findings and internal
control recommendations in a meeting of the Audit Committee attended by Netis.

The final Comprehensive IC Review Report was issued on 3 December 2020.

For more details regarding the Initial IC Review, the Comprehensive IC Review,
the Resumption Guidance and the resumption progress, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated |2 June 2019, 28 June 2019, 3 July 2019, 31
July 2019, 29 September 2019, 31 October 2019, 31 March 2020, 30 June 2020,
|7 July 2020, 30 September 2020, 4 December 2020, 4 January 202 and 8 January
2021.
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(b)  Others
Reference are made to announcements of the Company dated 21 November
2019, I5 June 2020, 2 July 2020 and 6 October 2020. Terms used hereinafter

shall have the same meaning as defined in the announcements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the
relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 58 to 78 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities during the Review Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has always maintained

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the Shareholders

by reason of their holding of the Company's listed securities.
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AUDITOR

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 14 January 2020 in
relation to Deloitte had tendered their resignation as the auditors of the Company with
effect from |3 January 2020. Pursuant to the note under Rule 13.51(4) of the Listing
Rules, the Company confirmed that the Deloitte had indicated in the Resignation Letter
that there were no circumstances connected with their resignation which they considered
ought to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or creditors of the Company in
addition to those mentioned in the said announcement. Also, the Board was not aware of
any other matter that should be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or creditors

of the Company regarding the resignation of Deloitte.

On 17 January 2020, the Company announced that ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
("ZHONGHUI ANDA") was appointed by the Board as the auditor of the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements in this annual report have been audited by ZHONGHUI
ANDA. A resolution will be proposed for approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Yuming

Chairman, Executive Director and President

Hong Kong, 8 January 2021

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEEHRE @

B AR

BRMANTBEA200F | B14B 2 A%
NABREHEHFHEARDAIZEE - 52020
FIRIBBRER - RIELETHRAE13.51(4)
EETHF - ARAER - ZHERETH
Rigt - R B ASTRREER - BE
HSEEFEREANBERARBREIEA
BERAEE - i EFGMAEIREM
R T ERNEETIERREIARA]

ERAEE -

R2020F 1 178 ARRIEM EFGZX
EHELZEGHMEEMARDA ([FER
E)RARARGREE FHEEARATTE
BREBFAEERABL - NRERPHEGEH
BHRRELHELREER - BETERESR
AR AVZEAN 2 RFER KN EERREEFK
2 R AR ALK

RREFS
TE - HITEEREH
HEH

& 202151 BsH

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £} @



“

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate goverance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in providing a
framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate
value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and

accountability.
The Company has applied the principles as set out in the CG Code.

The Company has established a set of policies and procedures based on the CG Code.
Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure for enhancing the Board's ability
to implement governance and exercise proper oversight on business conduct and affairs

of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company has complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
save and except for code provisions A2.| and A4.2. Code provision A2.| states that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual, details of which are set out in the section headed “Chairman
and Chief Executive” in this corporate governance report. Code provision A4.2 states
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, details of which are set out in the
section headed "Appointment and Re-election of Directors” in this corporate governance

report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for securities

transactions by the Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Company has also established Written Guidelines on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance

of the Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group's businesses,
strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company.
The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from the Directors to perform their
responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Directors are spending sufficient time

performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuming  (Chairman, President and Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

Mr. Fang Zhifeng  (resigned on 31 July 2020)

Mr. Zhao Xingli  (resigned as an executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 14 June 2020)

Mr. Yang Guo (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on |1 August 2020)
Mr. Wei Rongda  (Vice President)
(appointed on || August 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuguo (Member of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Qiu Jianwei  (Member of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xu Jun (Member of the Nomination Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kong Aiguo  (resigned as an independent non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 24 August 2020)
Ms. Fang Lan (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Cai Jiangnan  (Member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Hsu Wai Man  (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member of the

Helen Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

(appointed on 24 August 2020)
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 24 to 33 of this annual report. The relationships between

the members of the Board are also disclosed under the same section.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A2.| of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. In
2018, Mr. Lin Yuming was the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. In
view of Mr. Lin Yuming being one of the founders of the Group, and his responsibilities
in corporate strategic planning and overall business development, the Board believed that
it was in the interests of both the Group and the shareholders to have Mr. Lin Yuming
taking up both roles for effective management and business development. The Board
also met regularly on a quarterly basis to review the operation of the Group led by Mr.
Lin Yuming. Accordingly, the Board believed that this arrangement will not impact on the
balance of power and authorisations between the Board and the management of the
Company. Having said that, as announced on | | August 2020, Mr. Yang Guo is appointed
as an executive director and chief executive officer of the Company, and the Group now

is in compliance with the CG Code.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the

view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A4.l of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A4.2
states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

Each of the executive Directors is appointed under a services contract and each of the
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors is appointed under a
letter of appointment for a term of three years, which is subject to renewal upon expiry
of the terms and terminable by either party by giving one month's written notice to the

other party.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM at least once every three years. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following AGM after his/her appointment subject to re-election at

such meeting.

As no annual general meeting of the Company was held since the last annual general
meeting held on |2 June 2018, Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Xu Jun, Mr. Qiu Jianwei and Ms. Fang
Lan, who have held their offices as directors for more than three years, will be subject to

retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and
is collectively responsible for directing and supervising its affairs. Directors take decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, provides direction to
management by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control

and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and

professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard
of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing

effective independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company as well as
the services and advice from the senior management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's

expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them and
the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to perform his

responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal and comprehensive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and

obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors
would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be provided to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training

courses at the Company's expenses.
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The record of continuous professional development relating to director’s duties and

regulatory and business development that have been received by the Directors for the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

year ended 31 December 2019 are summarized as follows:
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HEENENETRER AR ETEY
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Type of Training N«
Directors Es AR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming MERLE A&B AKB
Mr. Fang Zhifeng Wil 3 as A
Mr. Zhao Xingli HE kA A
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBLE A
Mr. Qiu Jianwei BEELE A
Mr. Xu Jun RELE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Kong Aiguo HLEBR%SE A
Ms. Fang Lan FRZLT A
Mr. Cai Jiangnan EImkE
Notes: BisE
Types of Training IR
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and A HEEIRE - 8% (BETRR) BRe - i
workshops e gRkIES
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications B: EENEED  ®E - BT MR
Eﬁ?‘]%

Relevant reading maternials including legal and regulatory update have been provided to

the Directors for their reference and studying.

Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng have resigned as executive directors of the
Company with effect from 14 June 2020 and 31 July 2020 respectively, and Mr. Kong

Alguo has resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect

from 24 August 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company's website (www.hemeiyl.com) and the website of HKEx

(www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-executive
Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out

under “Board of Directors” in this corporate governance report.

Audit Committee
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than those

set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit and appointment of external
auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the

Company.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial results and internal control report and
significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
function, appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of works, and arrangements

for employees to raise concems about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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Remuneration Committee
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms

than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates

will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met during the year ended 31 December 2019 to review
and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management and other

related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out in note 16 to

the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms than

those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent

non-executive Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into account
various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where

necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence, time commitment and other relevant criteria as set out in the director
nomination policy (the “Director Nomination Policy") that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making

recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31 December 2019 to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring

Directors standing for election at the AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential

element in maintaining the Company’'s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate

strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, age, cultural and educational background, professional

qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience.
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The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives that
are relevant to the Company's business growth and is also committed to ensuring
that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are

appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse.
The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and

ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate and on

a regular basis, to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Nomination Committee for
identification and selection of candidates to stand for election as Directors. The Company
has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out the selection criteria and
process and the Board succession planning considerations in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and

the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to

the following:

J Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience

that are relevant to the Company's business and corporate strategy;

0 Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, race, age (18 years
or above), cultural and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and industry and regional experience;
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0 Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board and
independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors in accordance

with the Listing Rules; and

. Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest to discharge duties

as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and

appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate,

to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of

the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had reviewed the Company's
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, compliance of the Model
Code and the Whritten Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this corporate govemance report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS B HfERE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board committee meetings and EEZHEARAREZR219F12A83181E
AGM of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the FERTZESEREZZESEANMRE
table below: BFERG 2 HEDEHIIN T -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERR, EERE

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee
EEpR =g ENEES FMEES REZ8E
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming 13/13 N/A N/A [/1
MEALE TER TEM
Mr. Fang Zhifeng 13/13 N/A N/A N/A
Paliss: > ivtad TER TER TEH
Mr. Zhao Xingli 12/13 N/A 071 N/A
HEN xR TER TEMA
Non-executive Directors
FHITEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo 12/13 N/A /1 N/A
MEBRKE TER TER
Mr. Qiu Jianwei 10/13 33 N/A N/A
ifeaEd i TER TEH
Mr. Xu Jun 2/13 N/A N/A 0/1
BRERE TER TEm
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITEE
Mr. Kong Aiguo /13 3/3 [/ 11
HEELE
Ms. Fang Lan 1713 33 /1 11
TEZT
Mr. Cai Jiangnan 9/13 3/3 171 [/1
FIELE
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Notes:

Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng have resigned as executive directors of the Company
with effect from 14 June 2020 and 31 July 2020 respectively, and Mr. Kong Aiguo has
resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 24
August 2020.

2. No AGM was held during the year ended 3| December 2019.

The attendance records of the following Directors at the relevant meetings by their

alternates are set out below:

HENEERAEREEDHRIE202056
A 148 20207 A31 BEHIA R RIITE
E - MALEBLEE 5202058 A24HEHE
AARBUIFHTES -

2. REIE2019% 12831 BIEFEERTRE
BEAE -

TIE=ENAEEHENHFCE (ARENE
EAHE) EHIWMT

Number of Meetings

BERE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Name of Alternate Director Board Committee Committee Committee
BEEpS BEESHS ExE FHREEE FHEEE 2 REZES
Mr. Zhao Xingli Ms. Fang Lan /13 N/A [/1 N/A
HENEE HERL TEA TEH
Mr. Lin Yuguo Ms. Fang Lan [/13 N/A N/A N/A
MEB AL HERZE i NiEH TEH
Mr. Xu Jun Mr. Qiu Jianwei 8/13 N/A N/A [/1
BRERE Bt TER TEH
Mr. Kong Aiguo Mr. Lin Yuguo [/13 N/A N/A N/A
HLEELE MEBRLE TER TER TER
Ms. Fang Lan Mr. Cai Jiangnan 113 N/A N/A N/A
TRZL EImxs TiEH i TiEH
Mr. Kong Aiguo 1713 N/A N/A N/A
HLEEEE TER TER TEH

Note: Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Kong Aiguo have resigned as an executive director and as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from [4 June 2020 and 24

August 2020 respectively.
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors during the

year ended 3| December 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and interal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal

control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing their
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Company has developed “Risk Management System”, “Anti-Fraud Management
System”, “Internal Control Manual”, etc., and carries out risk management according to

relevant systems.

The Risk Control and Audit Department of the Company is responsible for organizing and
implementing the development of the “Internal Control Manual” and conducting training
and publicizing within the Group, and conducting targeted internal control evaluation of
its subordinate units and preparing internal control evaluation reports to the management
for review. It is also responsible for organizing, coordinating and supervising functional
departments of the Company and business personnel of each unit to carry out risk
identification and risk assessment in key business areas of healthcare industry, assess the
possibility and effects of risks, and provide treatment plans and monitor risk management

progress.
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The Risk Control and Audit Department also conducts status assessment tests on major
risk points of key business operations and major risk areas of key business matters in
accordance with the Group's requirements; and reviews the control points in each process,
analyzes the risks that may exist in each control point and describes control measures
in detail. It performs audit regularly on all units and business departments, incorporates
potential fraud risk points into regular audit and conducts extended investigations on the
potential fraud risks existed in each unit; and evaluates and responds to key risk matters

and reviews the development and implementation of relevant systems.

The Risk Control and Audit Department also assists in developing “Major Risk
Management and Control Measures” and organizing relevant functional departments and
units in our headquarter to conduct evaluation of the Company's major risks, follows up
major risks and reports to the management in a timely manner. The units and departments
that have encountered related risk matters should identify and analyze related risks
through weekly meetings, monthly business meetings, ad hoc meetings etc. and actively

take countermeasures to resolve existing risks.

Based on the “Internal Control Manual” and other guidance notes, the Risk Control
and Audit Department conducts targeted internal control evaluation on the design and
implementation of internal control of its subordinate units and issues internal control

evaluation reports.

The Risk Control and Audit Department issues an “Internal Audit Report” on related
areas to the Audit Committee every six months to review relevant matters, which
includes summary of risk management and anti-fraud work, development and operation of

internal control system and audit and other work etc.

All divisions conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify risks that
potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information security. Self-evaluation
has been conducted to confirm that control policies are properly complied with by each

division.
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The management, in coordination with division heads, assessed the likelihood of risk
occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of

the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 3|
December 2018.

In view of the Delay, the Audit Committee engaged BDO as an independent internal
control consultant to conduct the Initial IC Review on certain internal control procedures
of the Company. The scope of the Initial IC Review included an independent assessment
of the internal control systems of the Group, covering the transaction process of the
Equity Transfer, anti-fraud management, the administration of contracts and seals, the
management of fund and investment; and the management of cash and payment during
the period of | January 2018 to 31 March 2019, the results of which were published by
the Company in its announcement dated 25 March 2020.

Further, on |7 July 2020, the Company appointed Netis as the Internal Control
Consultant to conduct the Comprehensive IC Review of the Group's internal control
procedures which will cover all of the Group's significant subsidiaries and to the extent
practicable, its major associated companies, for the period between | January 2018 and
31 July 2020 in order to comprehensively evaluate the Group's internal control systems.
Netis issued a draft Comprehensive IC Review report containing its findings of the review
and internal control recommendations. The Company has since implemented the internal
control recommendations in accordance with the draft Comprehensive IC Review Report
in consultation with Netis. The Audit Committee reviewed the draft Comprehensive I1C
Review Report and agreed with its findings and internal control recommendations in a
meeting of the Audit Committee attended by Netis. The final Comprehensive IC Review
Report was issued on 3 December 2020.

For more details regarding the Initial IC Review and the Comprehensive IC Review,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 12 June 2019, 31 July 2019, 31
October 2019, 7 July 2020, 4 December 2020 and 8 January 2021.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the management report
and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems, including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year
ended 3| December 2019, and considered that such systems after the adoption of all
recommendations as suggested by Initial IC Review and Comprehensive IC Review are
effective and adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting, internal

audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control

or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to the
Directors, the Company's officers, senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.
Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized access and use

of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB425,083,000 for the year ended 3|
December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB148,597,000. As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of the Group was approximately
RMB233,911,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business. Save as disclosed above, Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”

on pages 79 to 91 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company, Zhonghui ANDA CPA
Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

3 'rﬁsAiﬁﬂ:(

AREBYZHEMARRERTBHRE B
HETIRAENAFRFE IR A2 [BL
RRERSE A -

BB AT &

RATIGREE2019F 12 A3 BIEEERARD
BN R E R E ST ESAERD
Btz BEEFHImMT

Service Category Fees Paid/Payable
PR %5 51 B/ BNER
RMB'000

AEETT

Audit Services BB 1950
Non-audit Services IFELIRTS 150
2,100

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Wei has resigned as a joint company secretary and vice president of the
Company on 29 September 2020. Following Mr. Chen's resignation as a joint company
secretary, Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,

continues to serve as the company secretary of the Company since 29 September 2020.

Ms. Cheung was appointed as a joint company secretary in place of Ms. Siy Ling Lung

following Ms. Siy's resignation as a joint company secretary on 28 May 2018.

Ms. Cheung's primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chen Longzhen (Chief

Financial Officer).

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary on

corporate governance and board practices and matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various communication channels.

To safeguard Shareholders” interests and rights, separate resolution will be proposed for
each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and

HKEx after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands for putting forward proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to consider the business specified in the requisition. For proposing a person
for election as a Director, please refer to the "Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a

Person for Election as a Director” posted on the Company's website.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the following:

Address:  No. A2 Xiaoguan Beili

Beiyuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, China

For the attention of Mr. Chen Longzhen
Fax: 86 10 87766997
Email: chenlongzhen@| 88.com/ir@hemeiyl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other extraordinary general
meetings. At the AGM, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet

Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company's Articles of Association

is available on the Company's website and HKEx's website.
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- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERTE @

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to ensure that
Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly

reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which sets out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration,

payment or distribution of dividends to the Shareholders.

The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial results and conditions of the Company and the Group, and the conditions and
factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, including but not limited to cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and eamings, and capital requirements
and expenditure plans of the Group, as well as the interests of Shareholders and any
restrictions on payment of dividends, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to

the Shareholders’ approval.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

n

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Harmonicare Medical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"“Group") set out on pages 92 to 205, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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" INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B2 RE @)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Limited accounting books and records of subsidiary disposed

As disclosed in note |3 to the consolidated financial statements, the disposal of
Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company (the “Shenzhen HariMoniCare Hospital”) have been completed
on 30 May 2019 (“Disposal Date"). Due to the insufficiency of supporting
documentation and explanations for accounting books and records in respect of
Shenzhen HariMoniCare Hospital for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
we were unable to carry out audit procedures to satisfy ourselves as to whether
the following income and expenses for the years ended 3| December 2019 and
2018, the assets and liabilities as at Disposal Date and 31 December 2018 and the
gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately RMB59,914,000 as included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been accurately recorded and

properly accounted for in the consolidated financial statements:

BLRRERZER

HENBARZEREGTRERTHE

BMGEMBEREMFI3AERE - &
NAIMBRAIRNFEFEZRBRER
NEN(DRNFIERET ) BR201945 A
30 ([HEBH]) TREE - BRE
ZE2019FR20I18F12A3IALFER
BRYIFERP 2 85T R E Rk &
AXHRBEETRTR ZPIRERER
BREF  ULBEMEMATRIRN B
REGAMBREANEE2019F %2018
F1ABEFENRARRAS - R
EHER20I18FI12A3IBNEERERE
NERHE—RMBARNKELNAAR
#59,914,000TT = A ERERE M B HRE

RERERCER N AR

2019 2018

2019%F 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥Fr AEETT

Income and expenses LONSEET

Revenue gy 23,620 75,893
Cost of sales and services $HE KRR (20,666) (57,522)
Gross profit EM 2,954 18,371
Other income HAUA 134 335
Other gains and losses, net Hilas REEFE (173) (37)
Selling and distribution expenses HE KA HAX (6,701) (38,205)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR E &R (8,166) (12,004)
Impairment on various assets BEEERE - (42)
Loss for the year FAEE (11,952) (31,582)




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

——
B 3 % BT R )
BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued) EERRERZER (&)
I.  Limited accounting books and records of subsidiary disposed (Continued) . HEMBARZERSFTERIERTE
(&)
2018
2018%F
RMB'000
AEETFT
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Property, plant and equipment ER S 31,477
Other intangible assets Hip L& E 117
Rental deposits HeEe 2712
Other long-term assets HihRHEE 1,340
Inventories "E 2553
Trade receivables B S RWRIE 1,015
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables R - e REMEKKRIE 2,375
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEY 437
Trade payables g HRENFIE (511
Other payables and accruals Hitn e pIA R et B A (22,030)
Accrued rental expenses e &M% (12,674)
Net assets BEFE 6,811
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" INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B2 RE @)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

2. Limited accounting books and records of the Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd.
(“Hibaby”) and its subsidiaries (“Hibaby Group”)

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to whether share of loss of an associate of approximately RMBI1,991,000 for the

year ended 3| December 2018 are properly stated.

Also, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether the income and expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and from acquisition date to 3| December
2018 and the following assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
as included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been

accurately recorded and properly accounted for in the consolidated financial

BERKRZR2EH (R)

2.

SEBRREEARAT ([SIEB])
RHEKBEAR (B[N EABEE]) 2
EREHRERTE
RPARERBREY REENENRE
NLBEMEMNEZE2018F 12 A3
ALFESEHERARBEAARE
1,991,000TTREEZA/ZT °

AN - HPIRBEERIIRY BEXEE
AMBHRROEZ2019F 12831 ALLE
ERaKEREZ20I8% 12831 BRI
ARRSZIARATR2019% %2018 12
A3 BMEERARREEREEHE
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statements: MR ERCHERERBAR -

2019 2018

2019 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®Fr ANEETFT

Income and expenses WA KRB

Revenue Was 28,216 5757
Cost of sales and services HHE KRR (27,799) (8,072)
Gross profit/(loss) EF,/(F8) 417 (2,315)
Other income HeUA 72 |
Selling and distribution expenses HE KA HAX (3,900) (1,626)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR Bt & 2 (13,907) (10,166)
Finance costs BMEKK (10,953) (4,484)
Loss for the year FAEE (28,271) (18590)




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

2. Limited accounting books and records of the Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd.

(“Hibaby”) and its subsidiaries (“Hibaby Group”) (Continued)

B ZEMERE @

BLIBRRERZER (H)

2 HEBREEERARARA(HASD
REMBAR (SR ABKE] 2
BRETHRERCH ()

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FrT AEETT

Assets and liabilities BERARE

Property, plant and equipment ER G E 77,868 80,423
Goodwil HE 18,425 18,425
Other non-current assets HinIEmEn & E 5,000 5,000
Inventories =E 280 406
Trade receivables B SR RIE 58 34
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables R - e REMERKIE 41,878 49,471
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER 3,676 3,546
Trade payables g HRENFIE (7,837) (7,883)
Other payables Hfth R~ 5008 (32,116) (15,658)
Other loans HiER (23,589) (23,700)
Net assets BEFE 83,643 110,064
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B2 RE @)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

3.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets/land use right

Apart from the property, plant and equipment mentioned in points | and 2 above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to the (i) carrying amount of the certain property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB260,860,000 and RMB310,242,000
respectively as at 31 December 2019 and of the property, plant and equipment
and land use right of approximately RMB257,283,000 and RMBI 16,713,000
respectively as at 31 December 2018 are fairly stated; (i) whether provision for
impairment losses on the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of approximately RMB21,381,000 and RMB267,266,000 respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and on the property, plant and equipment and land
use right of RMB107,189,000 and RMBnil respectively for the year ended 31
December 2018 are properly stated; (iii) whether the depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately RMB38,864,000
and RMB71,439,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of land use right of
approximately RMB8, 162,000 and RMB2,443,000 respectively for the year ended
31 December 2018 are properly stated; and (iv) the accuracy of the disclosures in

relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

4.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Apart from the goodwill and other intangible assets mentioned in points | and
2 above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to the (i) carrying amount of the goodwill of approximately
RMB4,019,000 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and other intangible assets
of approximately RMB52,507,000 and RMB56,419,000 respectively as at 3|
December 2019 and 2018 are fairly stated; (i) whether provision for impairment
losses on goodwill of RMBnil and approximately RMB68,962,000 respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and on other intangible assets of
RMBnil and RMB135,199,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 are properly stated; (i) whether the amortisation of other intangible
assets of approximately RMB3,377,000 and RMB,864,000 respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are properly stated; and (iv) the accuracy of

the disclosures in relation to the goodwill and other intangible assets.

B ZEMERE @

BERRER2E# (R)

4.

BERHMEREE

bR EXE | ROE TR E R AR A
B BMRERERD REEHET
B - ALBIUSH3) 7 2019F %2018
FNANBNAEBNREBOARE
4,019,00070 JA R 2019F %2018 12 A
3 AMEMETEENREES BIAA
F#52,507,0007C &2 A R #56,419,0007T
BERFET : (hBE2019F K2018F
A3 BIEFEREEREEES R
ARBZ T RANREE68,962,0007TH)
BEBARBZE219FK%20I18F 12731
RIEFEREMELEERERBED R
AREZITR AR 135,199,000 7T A
BREEEZR/ES : (iVBE2019F R
2018F A3 BLEFEAEMBTEE
B DRI ARESI77000LRARE
1,864,000TT2 B EZABZE : K(v)EH
BERAMET AENREERTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £}



¢

- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B2 RE @)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

5.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent consideration
receivables

Included in the consolidated financial statements were financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB 185,766,000 and RMB1 65,845,000
respectively as at 3|1 December 2019 and 2018 and contingent consideration
receivables of approximately RMB12,419,000 and RMB10,990,000 respectively
as at 3| December 2019 and 2018, which are measured based on valuation
from an external valuer. In the absence of robust evidences for us to assess
the appropriateness of the estimates, judgements and assumptions adopted in
the valuation on the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and contingent consideration receivables, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to (i) the fair value measurement
and recoverability of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and the
contingent consideration receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018; (ii) fair
value change of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB7,614,000 and RMB6,222,000 respectively during the year ended 3| December
2019 and 2018 and of contingent consideration receivables of approximately
RMB 1,429,000 and RMB 10,990,000 respectively for the year ended 3| December
2019 and 2018; and (iii) related disclosures of the fair value measurement in the

consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables

Apart from the trade receivables mentioned in points | and 2 above, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the
(i) recoverability of and the carrying amount of the certain trade receivables of
approximately RMB31,969,000 and RMB31,723,000 respectively as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are fairly stated; and (i) whether provision for impairment losses
on above-stated trade receivables of RMBnil and RMBnil respectively for the year

ended 3| December 2019 and 2018 are properly stated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

7.

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables, other long-term assets and loan
receivables

Apart from the prepayment, deposits and other receivables and other long-term
assets mentioned in points | and 2 above, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the (i) recoverability of and
the carrying amount of the certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables
of approximately RMB124,976,000 and RMB47,818,000 respectively and other
long-term assets of approximately RMB4,600,000 as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 are fairly stated; and (i) whether provision for impairment losses on
prepayment, deposits and other receivables of approximately RMB2,318,000 and
RMB I 16,465,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and
loan receivables of approximately RMB6,500,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 are properly stated.

Deferred tax liabilities

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to the (i) the carrying amount of the deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB34,4 13,000 and RMB35,417,000 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are fairly
stated; and (i) whether the income tax credit of approximately RMB1,004,000 and
RMB28,837,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in

relation to deferred tax liabilities are properly stated.
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B2 RE @)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

9.

Provision for onerous contracts

Due to the uncertainties in respect of the Group's financial position and financial
performance during the year, we have been unable to obtain robust supportable
evidence for us to assess whether the Group's various long term non-cancellable
lease contracts of lease commitments of RMB679,156,000 as at 31 December
2018 in relation to the Group's specialised hospital services are onerous contracts
as defined under International Accounting Standard 37. If that executory lease
contracts are onerous contracts, a provision is required to the extent for which the
related unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the

economic benefits expected to be received.

Contingent liabilities

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves as to (i) the carrying
amount of the provision for contingent liabilities and (ii) the existence and
completeness of the disclosures of contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019

and 2018,

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which
mentions that the Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB425,083,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019 the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately RMBI148,597,000. Also, as at 3| December
2019, the capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of

the Group was approximately RMB233,91 1,000.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Material uncertainty related to going concern (Continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which depends upon the successful outcome that certain financing
plans and measures as stated in note 2 of the consolidated financial statements
to improve its consolidated financial position, to provide liquidity and cash flows.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that would
result from the failure to fulfill the financing plans and measures. We consider that
the material uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

However, in view of the extent of the uncertainty relating to the successful
outcome that certain financing plans and measures to improve its consolidated
financial position, to provide liquidity and cash flows, we disclaim our opinion in

respect of the material uncertainty relating to the going concem basis.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points | to || above might have
a significant consequential effect on the Group's consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
and the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and

2018, and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B2 RE @)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’s report. However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis

for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 8 January 2021
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReBREkEtEZERER

For the year ended 3| December 2019
BZEW19F12A31BIEFE

2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pzt ARKETT ANE®FT
Revenue 23 8 826,143 1,014,990
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARIS A (584,117) (621,388)
Gross profit EF 242,026 393,602
Other income HAgA 10 3,988 7812
Other gains and losses, net Hles R BRI I 70,102 18,602
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HERX (195,123) (300,023)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR REMEERT (218,532) (257,703)
Impairment losses on various assets, net RIEAENREBBFE 5 (290,195) (558,626)
Provision for onerous leases ERUEERE 35 - (41337
Share of loss of associates FEIREE AR (173) (6,460)
Operating loss EEBR (387,907) (744,133)
Finance costs REKA 12 (34,857) (5.220)
Loss before income tax BRETEBAIEE (422,764) (749,353)
Income tax expense PSRRI 14 (2,319) (35,858)
Loss for the year FREE 5 (425,083) (785211)
Other comprehensive income: Hitt2EBA ¢
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: BN 7 EERm 2 ER -
Share of other comprehensive income i) NI RE L N
of associates - 138
Total other comprehensive income for the year ~ FREMZEWA AL - 138
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EEERLE (425,083) (785,073)
Loss for the year attributable to: UT&FREFRESE
Owners of the Company ARREEA (334,048) (725299)
Non-controling interests IR R (91,035) (59.912)
(425,083) (785211)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UT&FEEFRRE
attributable to: BREHE
Owners of the Company ARREBA (334,048) (725,161)
Non-controling interests IR Mg R (91,035) (59.912)
(425,083) (785,073)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) ERREE (ARED) 8 (46.36) (98.18)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MEHIR R

AT 31 December 2019
#2019% 128318

2019 2018
20196 2018%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BifeE AR®Fr AEETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 19 338,728 369,183
Land use right e A 20 - 116713
Right-of-use assets EREEE 21 428,942 -
Goodwil kS py) 22,444 22444
Other intangible assets HipmpEE 23 52,507 56,536
Interests in associates REFE DR 24 7,292 7,465
Rental deposits Hege 11,996 11921
Deferred tax assets ELERIEEE 38 1,412 2,595
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEARR ([RATE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") AABRZEREE 25 185,766 165,845
Contingent consideration receivables S ARE 26 = 4,087
Other long-term assets HiREEE 27 13,931 57,801
1,063,018 814,590
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =E 28 23,437 33,746
Contingent consideration receivables FEU S ARIE 26 12,419 6,903
Loan receivables e E 29 - =
Trade receivables B SRR 30 51,944 54,299
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TR » 2@ K E A RE WKIE 31 196,956 166,821
Cash and cash equivalents RelReFEN 32 33,853 133,846
318,609 395,615
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables B HEMNTIE 33 47,169 33,056
Other payables and accruals HipEf5IA R B R 34 295,359 261,487
Amount due to a related party JE 1~ BR Bt 77 5RO 1,225 1,225
Tax payable R IR 12,365 14,332
Other borrowings Hh 5k 36 36,008 32,770
Lease liabilities HEAR 37 73,424 -
Provision B 35 1,656 44,238
467,206 387,108
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (conTINUED)

A RN R @)

AT 3| December 2019
1R2019F 12831 B

2019 2018

20196 2018%F

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Pt AREFr ANEETFT

Net current (liabilities)/assets e (BB EEFE (148,597) 8,507

Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAE 914,421 823,097
Non-current liabilities FRBER

Accrued rental expenses fEstH SR = 40,113

Other borrowings HA a0 36 37,577 69,396

Lease liabilities HERE 37 584,493 -

Deferred tax liabilties ELHBRARE 38 34,413 35417

656,483 144,926

NET ASSETS EEFE 257,938 678,171
Capital and reserves B KR

Share capital R 39 598 598

Reserves (Gl 226,396 560,444

Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN B AFEhE R 226,994 561,042

Non-controlling interests R 30,944 117,129

TOTAL EQUITY R 257,938 678,171

FNFEWSEZGAUBRRIEETERN
2021 | ASHELERBETZELAIATES
RERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 205 were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 January 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director Director

=S S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 3| December 2019

HEWNIF12A3IBIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FORERAELE
Retained
Treasury Statutory profits/ Non-
Share Share Other share  Translation surplus - (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve loss)  Sub-total interests equity
e A ER ig i RENE/ FER

e e i RoEE e EHEE (RHEE) st BE AR

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO

NRETL ANRETT AEETT ARETT ARETT AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note i) (note il

(W) (W)

Balance at | January 2018 WISE| A I RS 598 1264166 (14390)  (13650) 70 76815 402% 1354105 28003 1,582,108
Loss for the year ERER - - = = - - (5299 (5299)  (39912) (785211
Other comprehensive income ERERERA

for the year - - - - 138 - - 138 - 38
Total comprehensive ENEEUA/(BR) &8

income/(loss) for the year - - - - 38 - (75299 (125160 (59912)  (785073)
Appropriations B4 - - - - - 2,180 (2,180) = - =
Purchase of shares under RERIE R B2 -

Restricted Share Incentive Scheme BB R (A = — = (67902) = = - (67902) = (67.902)
Increase capital from FERERIEE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 5600 5600
Acqisiion of non-wholly owned  WEEF 2 ENB L)

subsidiaries = = = = = = = = (56562) (56562)
Balance at 3| December 2018 WISEI2A3 AMEE 598 1264166 (14390) (81552 408 78995 (687.83) 561042 17,129 678,171
Balance at | January 2019 WI9E| A I AEE 598 1264166 (14390)  (81552) 408 78995 (687,183) 561,042 17,129 618171
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FRBRRZ DFELE

for the year = = = = = - (334048)  (334048) (91,035 (425083
Appropriations B = = = = = 441 (441) - - -
Dividend paid to non-controling ~ BfFEERERRE

interests = = = = = = = = (2n) 27)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13 HEKBAR (Hz13) - - - - - - - - 5122 512
Balnce at 31 December 2019 201912831 R4 598 1264166 (14390 (81552 408 7943 (1021672 226994 30944 257938
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" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
EREZEE R @

For the year ended 3| December 2019
BZE019F 12831 BIEFE

Notes:

(il

)

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency translation of a foreign associate are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

According to the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group, these companies are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax
profits, calculated in accordance with China Accounting Standards (“CASs"), to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve can be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of these companies, provided that such

fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

On 10 April 2017, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 3.5% non-controlling interest of
Guiyang Modern Hospital at a consideration of RMBI,131,000. On 22 May 2017, Guiyang
HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 3% non-controlling interest of Guangzhou Woman Hospital
at a consideration of RMB2,620,000. On 27 May 2017, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital
acquired 4.5% non-controlling interest of Chongging Liren Hospital at a consideration of
RMB2,486,000. The consideration with a total amounts of RMB6,237,000 was fully paid in
October 2017.

On 23 December 2017, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 3% non-controlling interest
of Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital at a consideration of RMB850,000. The

amount of consideration payable for acquisition of non-controlling interest is RMB850,000.

Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Hospital was set up on | March 2017 with injection of share
capital amounting to RMB36,000,000, including non-controlling interest of RMB 14,400,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 3| December 2019
HEWNIF12A3IBIEFE

2019 2018
20196 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHABRETRE
Loss before income tax BRETSRiAIE R (422,764) (749.353)
Adjustments for: AT BIBVEL AR -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREITE 47,712 70,605
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 71,439 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith B & E# A 3,377 11,758
Amortisation of land use right T b E AR = 2,443
Share of loss of associates FE(LERE A RIEE = 6,460
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y  BFE kR EHEE 6,180 553
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets EREEEZRERBE 267,266 -
Impairment losses on property, plant and W - BB MR RERR
equipment 21,381 107,189
(Reversal of)/impairment losses on trade B2 ENGIE . (BE),/ REEE
receivables (1,315) 2015
Impairment losses on prepayments, deposits and R Re REMEK
other receivables FHEZREER 2,318 116,465
Impairment losses on goodwil BEZRERE = 189,978
Impairment losses on other intangible assets Hin\p B E 2 RERE 528 135,199
Impairment losses on loan receivables W E R 2 REBE = 6,500
Impairment losses on amount due from related FE s BBt 5 )1 2 R E B R
parties 17 1,280
Provision for onerous leases and medical dispute BB E R BB MR BE
claims = 44,434
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) B &8 (as) 160 (222)
Finance cost BE A 34,857 5220
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz Y (66,176) =
Interest income from bank deposits RITEHZHEHA (126) (1,321
Interest income from loan receivables FEME TR B A (520 (631)
Interest income from amounts due from an FEUs —FRIEgE & A BB H S M A
associate - (3/454)
Gain upon the cancellation of leases FUEMRE 2 W (128) -
Fair value gain on contingent consideration FEM S AR B AT ER S
receivables (1,429) (10,990)
Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL BATES ARG eREE
Z W FEE (7,614) (6,222)
Net gain arising on bank financial products RTTIE I E M 2 W T8 (640) (1,734)
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERETRER @
For the year ended 3| December 2019
BZE019F 12831 BIEFE

2019 2018
2019 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFTT
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESRBANRE
working capital ReRE (45,477) (73,828)
Change in inventories Feg 7,367 (6,860)
Change in trade receivables B HRNGIAE S 2,104 (9,056)
Change in prepayment, deposits and BN Re REMER
other receivables FRIRE 19,026 (68,154)
Change in trade payables B o RENRIBE 18,425 7,165
Change in other payables and accruals Hip T IE R E B RE 63,738 (146,671)
Change in amount due to a related party [~ RE RS 75 IR S - 301
Change in rental deposits HEZRe® (2,901) 1,427
Change in accrued rental expenses fEstHERX 28 = 11,403
Payment in provision BT (1,245) (1,096)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations e,/ (R Re 8 61,037 (285,369)
Income tax paid RENIFIEE2) (6,177) (20944)
Interest received from bank deposits BHERITERZFLE 126 1,321
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating RETBHME (R BLFE
activities 54,986 (304,992)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GERERER®@®

For the year ended 3| December 2019

BEWIIFENA3IBIEFE

2019 2018
20196 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETFT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMBHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELERE (61,106) (107,176)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREE
equipment P13 3IE 395 430
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMEBTEE (583) (2,513)
Additions of right-of-use assets RERAEEE - -
Purchase of bank financial products BARTEMER (12,000) (43,000)
Redemption of bank financial products BERITIEM Em 12,640 44,734
Redemption of time deposits EEHES = 45,000
Acquisition of investments in associates WHERBE AR 2R E - (5,600)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries YEEMB AR ReRAFHE - 8,574
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests ~ FEiZE AR i€z T & = 5,600
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HENRBRRZRERAFE 571 =
Refund of deposit for acquisitions of businesses WX KRS RN 28,000 =
Repayment of loan from third parties E=HETEE = 124,457
Payments to acquire financial assets at FVTPL iR AT E ARG
ERBENK (12,307 (59.900)
Loans to associates B A BRI E R (17) (45,741)
Net cash used in investing activities REETHFMARESEH (44,407) (35,135)
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" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GERERER®@

For the year ended 3| December 2019
BZE019F 12831 BIEFE

2019 2018
2019 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETFT
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERERE
Other borrowings raised BEESHMER = 79,466
Interest paid on other borrowings RENE-E AP Y (8,199) (5220)
Repayments of other loans HAh ERFER R (28,581) =
Repayment of lease liabilities HERERMNK (73,734) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests [RIZEE AR s X TR B (272) -
Purchase of ordinary shares, including BALRER  2EXHHAE
transaction costs = (67902)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing MEEE (FTA)/ i
activities ReF8E (110,786) 6,344
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRASEEYROFH (100,207) (333,783)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExEH s ZE 214 634
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHHEREELEEY 133,846 466,995
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRASRASEEY
represented by bank and cash balances (EBRITRREHER) 33,853 133,846
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERASEEYIN
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 33,853 133,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 26 August
2014. The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands, and its
principal place of business is located in the PRC. The Company is an investment
holding company and the Group are principally engaged in provision of specialised
hospital services, especially in obstetrics and gynaecology and supply chain business
in the PRC.

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with the effect from 7 July 2015.

Reference to the announcement dated on | April 2019, the trading of ordinary
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has been suspended with effect
from | April 2019 pending the publication of the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Reference to the announcement dated on |2 June 2019, the Company received
a letter from the Stock Exchange on |5 May 2019 in relation to resumption
guidance for the Company including (i) publish all outstanding financial results
and address any audit modifications; (i) conduct an independent interal control
review and demonstrate that the Company has in place adequate intemal control
and procedures to comply with the Listing Rules; and (iii) announce all material
information for the Company's shareholders and other investors to appraise
the Company's position. If the Company fails to remedy the issues causing the
suspension and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange's
satisfaction and resume trading in the Shares by 30 September 2020, the Listing
Department of the Stock Exchange will recommend the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Committee”) to proceed with the cancellation of the
Company’s listing, subject to the Stock Exchange’s right to impose a shorter specific

remedial period under Rule 6.10 of the Listing Rules where appropriate.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

—RER
ARRR2014F8 26 ARBEFSHS
REVEERSESTMK L REREE
REERTF » ARFEMMERIOI A
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 26 November 2020, the Listing Committee considered the Company's
resumption and listing status. The Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange dated 27 November 2020 stating that the Listing Committee has decided
to cancel the Company’s listing under Rule 6.01A of the Listing Rules (the “Delisting
Decision”). It is indicated in the letter that unless the Company applies for a review
of the Delisting Decision pursuant to Chapter 2B of the Listing Rules, the last day of
listing of the Shares would be on | | December 2020, and the listing of the Shares
would be cancelled with effect from 9:00 am. on 14 December 2020.

The Company has submitted an application on 4 December 2020 requesting the

Delisting Decision be referred to the Listing Review Committee for review.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is
also the functional currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB425,083,000 for the year ended

31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB148,597,000. As at 31 December 2019, the capital

commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of the Group

was approximately RMB233,911,000. These conditions indicate the existence of

a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to

continue as a going concem. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its

assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors of

the Company have prepared the consolidated financial statements based on going

concern on the assumptions and measures that:

The Group is actively disposing certain subsidiaries including but not limited
to Nantong Hemeijia Hospital. The management of the Group is confident
that such disposals would generate at least RMBI50 million cash inflow to
the Group and significantly reduce overall capital commitments of the Group

in 2021;

The management has ceased or delayed nearly all construction of new
hospitals and new investments until the Group’s net current liabilities

situation is resolved;
The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales, administrative

expenses and capital expenditures;

The Group is also maximising its sale effort and implementing comprehensive

policies to improve operating cash flows.

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by management. The cash flow projections cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2019. After taking into account the above
assumptions and measures, the directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months from 3| December
2019 and believe that the Group will continue as a going concern and consequently

have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on | January 2019. IFRSs comprise International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™); International Accounting Standards (“IAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and consolidated amounts reported for the

current year and prior years except as stated below.

IFRS 16 “Leases”
The Group was initially applied IFRS 16 “Leases” with effect from | January 2019
and has taken transitional provisions and methods not to restate comparative

information for prior period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

3.  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under IAS 17 “Leases”, resulted in changes in the consolidated amounts

reported in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

BRAHETR] KSR BRI B R 2
2l (%)

BRI EREERE 165 HE | ()
RN BRI T e 22 RI 6 | 65R B - K
SERBERBRSENE 75
EINERIKEHE IMEERRER
BREENHERR  EYEAMBEREK
FIEBNEASREINT

| January 2019

20191818

RMB'000

AEEFT

Increase in right-of-Use assets EREEEEM 800,444
Increase in lease liabilities HEEEEM (739,101)
Decrease in provision for onerous lease EEMEHERERD 41,337
Decrease in land use right TP RER (116,713)
Decrease in other long-term assets Hip REEERD (6,289)
Decrease in prepayment, deposits and other receivables BN - ' REMEYIER D (24,380)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H it FE{ R IE R e ST B AR 4,589
Decrease in accrued rental expense fEstiE R R 40,113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

3.  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 3. ERENETET R AASET B RR B IS SR 5 2

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) Al (%)
IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) BIMREI M EERF 1657 HE | (&)
The reconciliation of operating lease commitment to lease liabilities as at | January R2019% | A1 BRRLHEREREE
2019 is set out below: BEMHERSIIWT -
| January 2019
20191 A1R
RMB'000
AEEFT
Operating lease commitment at 3| December 2018 20184 12 A31 HAE & E AR 971973
Less: "
Discounting at 4.75% 1R475%80 3R (232,872)
Lease liability as at | January 2019 R2019F 1 A1 BEMNEEEE 739,101
The Group has not applied the new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ARG B R B A A B AR A RN
effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these HET BB B 7% 2Bl o AEE B LH
new IFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new IFRSs would have AET G % SRR BURR B TS R R O &7
a material impact on its results of operations and financial position. 2 WERBEHPLENI AR BRE
RS THELEEE KM EK
BAVE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
issued by the IASB accounting and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL
and contingent consideration receivables which is carried at its fair values. The
preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

—IAN
ma
For the Year ended 31 December 2019
BEWI9F DA3IALER

T ELEERC )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as well as
potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine whether it has control.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between

the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a subsidiary in
a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.
|dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary's identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a

gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain
or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the

cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
were recognised in other comprehensive income (for example, equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as

would be required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose

of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured at the non-
controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s

identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of an entity but is not control or joint control over those policies. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a
potential voting right contributes to significant influence, the holder's intention and

financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that associate and (ii)
the Group's share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the

retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group'’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses

resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

TESHBX (&)

BE AT (H)

HE—RBELNR (8 ﬁ%fiﬁf”
) 2 WESEEELERENHD
BRI ZEE A AR E &ém
TEAEAEEREZBEDREET
BEREZEEARARCENATE
%u&&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁm%
BER o MRS ARINREZKR
Mﬁ%%&§'$ﬁsﬁ%%%%%§
EETGER T EREER

HEASBEREABENARERS AR
BRABIYARRERE E R 62 a5
R RIRFRUBERTIEREE
HERRE - TAREREERNT Y
o MERRZEHBRERARER
RS - DARE(R AR BIFTER AR 2 R
REM—H -

HEBE
() DEERZ5E
AEERBERNIMBIMKATIE
B AUZEREENETIER
f&%ﬁ’]i"i%(fﬂ]ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁ
o KRB M |MER TIAR R FIH)
Ij]ﬁz&fﬂﬁvﬁg}\ﬁﬁgi o

(i) EBEEBUBRXTHXEREL
INER I T HERERANZ
SRBZRTEXMERNER
B MINE2IMERBENE
BEREREMRZEXKE - [
S E R E A 0 e B R
R TER °

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £} @



e

"NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a
functional currency different from the Company's presentation currency are

translated into the Company's presentation currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of

financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

= All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign

currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of

the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESHEBCE (#)
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRME
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and ME - BERBBEXNRZANER
impairment losses. FERRTIE -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as {E7E 818 B AR R RS BN R B T8
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic MAREE L g HR] Sext 218 B AN
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item BART R AR g ABREREE
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit SHERABUEE (NER) - MEHM
or loss during the period in which they are incurred. BB REEN IR EE S PR B R
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the WE - BB NRER A T RIE R F
following estimated useful lives: AN EGEERE :

Estimated useful lives

fEETAERFR
Leasehold land and buildings 10 — 30 years
HEHRET 10E30%F
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

term and estimated

useful lives up to 10 years

HEWEEE RHERREZ 0FH

fhEt A E MR B EE
Medical equipments 10 years
BRI |05
Motor vehicles 4 — 6 years
B 4E6F
Fumniture and fixtures 3— 6 years
REARKE 3E6EF
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and

adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and plant
and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.

Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and

is recognised in profit or loss.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on

a prospective basis.

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are medical licenses
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as other

intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (Continued)

Derecognition of other intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, are recognised in profit or

loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities when
the leased assets are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-
of-use assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

Leasehold land THELH

Land and buildings T REF

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and
the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can
be determined, or otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-

value assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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“NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the first-in-first-out method. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit

or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESHBCR (&)

Financial assets tREE

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the WENREA NIEFHATEERE@M S

purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the FTREMRARNEEZBARLESR

asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially EAeREERRZBEERAANR

recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the KRR ETER - WHRATEMEZEER

case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly GRS HER - R R FE AR

attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are mAIRERIBRSN - YR AT EF AR

recognised immediately in profit or loss. BIRE 7 BERIGZARNERE
EHERR

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following categories: AEEeREENDBERATES :

REENATEZEREE &

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

—  Investments at fair value through profit or loss. - RBRAOTMEFAERZRE -

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost () HEBHEEITIEZEHEE
Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified under HWemEE (BREEHREKKEA
this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions: R E W IR ) £ & DA T R i

RISSALLDHR :

= the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold - HREEENRBERAZR
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and WEBEHRERE &

= the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to - RBENBHNGRRNEER
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the HEFERIXNAE LA
principal amount outstanding. EEAENEHNHEERE -

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective ZEEERBERERMNEEREHEK

interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses. ARFEHREEBE BERETE -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not meet the
conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the
Group designates an equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair

value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured
at fair value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss are net of any interest income and dividend income. Interest income

and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses

with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss allowance for
a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of that financial instrument
('lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that

financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial instrument (other
than trade receivables) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the expected credit
losses that result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible

within |2 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses (Continued)
The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss allowance at
the end of the reporting period to the required amount is recognised in profit or

loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash

equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting

period.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives (including contingent considerations under business combinations) are
initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses

arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer with reference to the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one Yyear, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant

financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control over a product or service to a customer. Depending on
the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a performance
obligation can be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation

is satisfied over time if:

= the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance;

= the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the product or service.

Other revenue
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest

method.

Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matemity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents

contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(i)~ Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors,

employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are measured at
the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at the fair value
of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services rendered cannot be
reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value
is measured at the date the Group receives the services and is recognised as an

expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than

borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor

the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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“NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle

its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group

if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily  is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of

a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBERHE @

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(B)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

()

(i

(i)

v)

\

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group s itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(A):

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Company or to a parent

of the Company.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements are identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for the purpose of allocating

resources and assessing the performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available for use are
reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and other intangible assets except goodwill, deferred tax assets,
investments, inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the

cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which

case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the

reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the
Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have made
the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)  Going concern basis
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the assumptions and

measures as explained in note 2 to consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are discussed below.
(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the present value
of estimated future cash flows. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected or there are unfavourable events and change in facts and
circumstance which result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material

impairment loss may arise.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

®)

(©)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated and other intangible assets. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
and other intangible assets at the end of the reporting period were
approximately RMB22,444,000 and RMB52,507,000 (2018: approximately
RMB22,444,000 and RMB56,536,000), respectively. Impairment losses
on goodwill and other intangible assets of approximately RMBnil and
RMB528,000 had been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately RMB189,978,000 and RMBI35,199,000),
respectively. Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in note

22 and note 23 to consolidated financial statements.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

@

()

Recoverability of trade receivables and prepayment, deposits and other
receivables

Allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that
the recoverability of trade receivables due from customers and prepayment,
deposits and other receivables becomes doubtful. As at 31 December 2019,
the carrying amounts of trade receivables and prepayment, deposits and
other receivables are approximately RMB5 1,944,000 and RMB 196,956,000
(2018: RMB54,299,000 and RMB166,821,000) respectively. In determining
the recoverability of overdue trade and other receivables, management
makes assumptions and applies judgements in assessing the recoverability
of trade and other receivables, based on certain of these factors including
debt aging, historical settlement experience, subsequent settlements, future
expected settlement plan, business relationship with the debtors and credit
assessment of debtors. The directors of the Company believe that there will
not be a material change in the estimates or assumptions which are used
in the calculations of recoverable amounts of trade and other receivables.
However, when the actual outcome or expectation in the future is less or
more than the original estimates, additional or reversal of impairment loss

may arise.

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

As disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the fair
values of the financial assets at FVTPL at the date of issue and the end of
the reporting period were determined using binomial model. Application
of binomial model requires the Group to estimate the prominent factors
affecting the fair value, including but not limited to, the expected life of the
financial assets, the expected volatility, and the discount rate. Where the
estimation on these factors is different from those previously estimated, such
differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of the financial assets at

FVTPL in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency risk,

credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as certain assets
are denominated in United States dollars (‘USD") and Hong Kong dollars
(‘HKD"), which are not the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
directors of the Company manage its currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should such need arise.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in RMB against USD and HKD. 5% is the sensitivity rate represents
the directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation to RMB
at year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss where RMB weakens 5% against the USD
and HKD. For a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for the vear, and

the amounts below would be negative.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the time deposits, bank deposits, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, contingent
consideration receivables and amounts due from related companies included
in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31 December 2019 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL and amounts due
from related companies. In order to minimise credit risk, the directors have
delegated a team to be responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the directors
review the recoverable amount of each individual debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on time deposits and bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by credit-rating

agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBERHE @

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following information is used:

= internal credit rating;

- external credit rating;

= actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change

to the borrower's ability to meet its obligations;

= actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the

borrower;

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the

same borrower; and

- significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the quality of

guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the

borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 30
days past due in making a contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60 days

of when they fall due.
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"NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BB RN @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable for write off
when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days
past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Group, if
practicable and economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to

attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for each
of the categories. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group

considers historical loss rates for each category and adjusts for forward

6.

cHEREE (&)
(b) FEERK (&)

PREENSEBRYEZLD
(AnfER AR B AR R B AR TR
ATED) B o HESARNBS
RiBB360 R EAEL AN -
AREBEEHMBE D BEFK
FENCRIA - i B TRk R U IR
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w77 B B 2 B B e U SO
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looking data. ZREHAINBEBEBE AR
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Category Definition Loss Provision

g5l ek 5 BRRE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses

B KB AER RS 6L T EAEYER

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses

FEEA) ELTEL e EHEHER
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6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
()  Liquidity risk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the Group's

financial liabilities is as follows:

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
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Less than
| year or Total
repayable Between Between undiscounted Carrying
ondemand [ to2years 2to5years OverSyears  cash flows amount
EDIN- KRRE
REREE =Yk 155 SENE RESE REE
RMB'O0O  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'OOD  RMBOOO
ANRETFT ANRETT ANEEFT ARETFT ARETT AREFI
At 3| December 2019 R2019%128318
Trade payables B OENFUE 47,169 - - - 47,169 47,169
Other payables BRI 136,343 - - - 136,343 136,343
Amount due to a related party FEfTEIR A TR 1,225 - - - 1,225 1,225
Lease liabilties HEEE 110,276 91,69 231,253 40,957 854,77 657,917
Other borrowings AfthfE 38913 15,224 23699 - 77836 73,585
Total @t 333926 106,915 254952 420957 1,116,750 916,239
At 3| December 2018 R2018%F 128318
Trade payables BSEMATE 33,056 h - - 33,056 33,056
Other payables Bt ERFIE 87,81 = - - 8781 878!
Amount due to a related party FENBR TR 1225 2 - . 1,225 1225
Other borrowings At 38307 34613 38923 3 11863 102,166
Total Ch 159,889 34613 38923 - 233425 23728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. LSHERERE(H)
(d) Interest rate risk d FEER
The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate AEBHGEBIDNERTR
bank balances, which carry prevailing market interest. The management wil (BRBRITMHSNEG S ) BRITHE
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise. SRR RENERER - ERE
KREFREZELPEAF X
Rk -
The management considered that the exposure to cash flow interest rate EREERREBHMBRITEB KRR
risk in relation to bank balances and bank borrowings is minimal, accordingly, fERZRMmEN X R RN -
no sensitivity analysis is presented for both years. Bt - WARFEMEEE 2 5 %
BT
(e)  Fair values () 2¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities AEENEREERSRBREN
as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position approximate FREE (REGE M BRARM
their respective fair values. N EEZB 2 ATFEEE °
(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 3| December  RI2ABEZEMIAER
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AEETT
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost (including B EK AT ENEMEE
cash and cash equivalents) (BRERERBREEED) 205,223 276442

Investments at fair value through profit or loss: 127\ FAEET A Bz S 1RE -

Financial assets at FVTPL BATEMABENSREE 185,766 165,845

Contingent consideration receivables FEW S AR E 12,419 10,990
403,408 453277

Financial liabilities: SREE:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost EEERAGTENERAR 916,239 223728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS DVERE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a REEATHZ2EENTEARERF
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement RHPHEEEMURSEREEMX
date. The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy FNEER - U TAFEAERERAL
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to TESR SRR EATENGBER
measure fair value: MEOBABED B=ESR :
Level | inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or F—RBARE - AEERGEHHA
liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date. EBEMEREER B BN ERT SN RE
(CREEHE)
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are E_RBARE - B—RAEREUN
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. AEZAEEREERNEEXBBENREA
2iE -
Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. E=MBARE - BEXBEHNTAE
RRARE -
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of the ZJSEEE"JEK”“*#/@EE@@%E@%ﬁEQ
three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the NEB B - BREAREHEMN=
transfer. 1 Tirn& P
()  Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 3| December @ RRAINBHAFEZERANE
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERNTSENAFEE : At
Level | Level 2 Level 3 2019
£ E-R EE 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurements: REMEATETE:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss:  RAFEFFABR A
Financial assets at FVTPL B TET ABRE
TREE - 185,766 185,766
Contingent consideration receivables FEW S AR E = 12,419 12,419
Total recurring fair value measurements BEURTEAEEE = 198,185 198,185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

me

T ELEERC )

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEFE (&)
(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December (Continued) @ RNRAJINBNATESRANE
RIWE (F)
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERUTEBRNRHERE st
Level | Level 2 Level 3 2018
i -, F=h 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTT ARETT AEETT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurements: REMDPETE
Investments at fair value through profit or loss: BRATEGABRZRE
Financial assets at FVTPL BT ET ABRE
TREE - - 165,845 165,845
Contingent consideration receivables RS ARE = = 10990 10990
Total recurring fair value measurements REM AT ETE4E = = 176,835 176,835

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no

transfer between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The

Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy

as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group's financial controller is responsible for the fair value

measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting

purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The financial controller

reports directly to the board of directors for these fair value measurements.

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the financial

controller and the board of directors at least twice a year.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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:i&wéﬂiﬁ;)\%ﬁi}& o REBZHRE

RHEERBE LR 2 RS HIRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level 3:

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

7.  AFVEEE @)

b) RBREE=FRAVEFENEE

Bk :
Contingent
Financial consideration
assets at FVTPL receivables Total
BRAVEABEN
TREE R ARE st
2019 2019 2019
2019% 20195 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARMFT ARETFT
At the beginning of year REF] 165,845 10,990 176,835
Total gains recognised in R R KR
profit or loss (#) BEE(H) 7,614 1,429 9,043
Issue BAT 12,307 - 12,307
At the end of reporting period ~ FATREHIAR 185,766 12,419 198,185
(#) Include gains for assets held at (#)BIEFREHIRHE
the end of reporting period BE 2 W 7,614 1,429 9,043

The total gains recognised in profit or loss are presented in other gains and
losses (Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL and fair value gain on
contingent consideration receivables) in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

R ARRH RS AR NGRS B
B A R T Mt R DI A A Wk K
BEAVEABENEREEESE
Z W F RN R AR BN A FEK

i) o
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level 3:

REE (&)
b) RBREE=FRAVEFENEE

(Continued) IR (&)
Contingent
Financial consideration
assets at FVTPL receivables Total
RATER ABZR
TREE FEREHARE st
2018 2018 2018
2018%F 2018%F 2018%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRBFT ANEBFT ANRBFT
At the beginning of year REH] 99,723 = 99,723
Total gains recognised in R R E
profit or loss (#) HE(#) 6,222 10,990 17,212
lssue BT 59,900 - 59,900
At the end of reporting period ~ FA¥REHIR 165,845 10,990 176,835
(#) Include gains for assets held ~ (#)BIER R EHIRFTH
at the end of reporting period BEz W 6,222 10,990 17212

The total gains recognised in profit or loss are presented in other gains and
losses (Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL and fair value gain on
contingent consideration receivables) in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019

BEWIENAIBLEEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEFE (&)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation (0 TA2019FR20I8F12A3IAEXE
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 3| December BARANEERFRDVER
2019 and 2018: EFfRANEERMREARE
HRE
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are mainly: E=RATEAENKANTE
TABERABEIER
Effect on fair
Valuation Unobservable value for increase
Description technique inputs Range of inputs Fair value 2019
B BB E s
#1E e ER M FUBEGANE BE AVENRE  DVE009F
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL Binomial Model Volatility 41.32% — 41.85% Increase
BAVEFABSNSREE —HABL il 1210
Discount rate 12.48% — 13.41% Decrease
B E L 185,766
Contingent consideration Scenario-based Revenue 17.00% — 21.00% Increase
receivables method growth rate
KA RE (E=9; Wi R & 1210
Discount rate 13.00% Decrease
BhEE L 12,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEFE (&)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation () MR2019FR2018F 12831 HAKE
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 3| December BARANEERFRDFER
2019 and 2018: (Continued) BB EERNREAHE
NS (&)
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are mainly: F=BATEAEFMEANEE
TABERABEIER
Effect on fair
Valuation Unobservable value for increase
Description technique inputs Range of inputs Fair value 2018
LEUN S ¢l
#f5 fE R TABREAEE #HE AHENFE  ATEW0IF
RMB'000
ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL Binomial Model Volatility 42.69% —45.12% Increase
RAVEFABSENSHEE —RARR R 120
Discount rate 14.63% — 14.74% Decrease
BhEE D 165,845
Contingent consideration Scenario-based Revenue growth 13.009% —21.00% Increase
receivables method rate
M ARHKE (E=9; LhEE oS 120
Discount rate 13.00% Decrease
BEEE e 10,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

8. REVENUE 8. W&
Revenue represents the amount received or receivable from provision of W g tE TR B R B B AR 7 M A Bem [
specialised hospital services and supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices B R e T 0 B M S R R IR R AT 4
business, net of discount and sales related taxes, are as follows: RIHERMNIE - #IIWT -
The Group's revenue is analysed as follows: AEENREAITMAT -
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARHFT AEETFT
Specialised hospital services: BRI ERARTS
Provision of healthcare services RERERS 711,397 870438
Sales of pharmaceuticals and HE M R BERE
medical devices 95,434 111,526
Supply of pharmaceuticals and MR R B R R SRS
medical devices business 19,312 33,026
Revenue from contracts with customers REEF &AW 826,143 1,014,990
For the years ended 3| December 2019 and 2018, all revenue is recognised at a BIE2019F R2018F 12A31BIESF
point in time. &+ PR MG RS AR P B R -
Provision of healthcare services RUEBRRY
The Group provides healthcare services to the customers. Revenue from provision REERRFRHEZRRY - RERE
of healthcare services are recognised when the services are rendered and there is EERBHNEAREEBIRE I &
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the services. Y ERFREMNRENARBITETR
ﬁﬁgfu °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)

SIPAN
ma
For the Year ended 31 December 2019
BEWI9F DA3IALER

T ELEERC )

REVENUE (Continued)

Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices business

The Group sells pharmaceuticals and medical devices to the customers. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the

customer's acceptance of the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30 days. Deposits

received are recognised as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to the customers as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the

passage of time is required before the payment is due.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng, the directors of the
Company, are identified as the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM") of
the Group for the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.
The CODM reviews operating results and financial information on a company
by company basis. This is also the basis upon which the Group is organised.
Accordingly, each company is identified as an operating segment. When the group
companies are operating in similar business model with similar target group of
customers, and under the same regulatory environment, the Group's operating
segment are aggregated and the Group's reportable segments for segment

reporting purposes are as follows:

Specialised hospital services

Wz ()
HERER R BRRERE

AEBERAEFPHEERRERRE -
REMMZHEER (AERRXYTE
F) EBERETNEBREFER

PBRXEmMR - RI@WHRHEE -

Iﬁf

MEFELNHEE —RERBNEE
Hﬂ E‘LI&HXT;Z%EEWUEJAQOEf =

FEUFARERRXN TEFH®R « i
REREIBRIEAFRRBS - R E
IR IR D EARLE

T EER
RRDEERMHEREME - KRR
EEMERRLE BENKLERTEHE
FRERATEENTRELEREE (X
ERERRE]) - TREERREBRA
AIEERMNLERENIBER 1t
MBABARER 2 ERE - it - K27
HERA—EZENE - WEERRK
BURBEALE  AERUERE
Fi:t HF%H%%%E%’K%@W
$¢Iﬁﬂﬂﬁ¢

provision of specialised hospital services, especially in obstetrics and

gynecology, provided at hospitals within the Group

SRR RS
Supply of pharmaceuticals
and medical devices business

B M BRI RS BEmREE

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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sales of pharmaceuticals and medical devices other than those supply as



9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating and

reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HE019F 2R3 BLLEE

9. ZEER (&)
AEBREERARE D HE D 2 Weat

REEZHMMT »

BZE2019F12A3IBLEE

Supply of

Specialised pharmaceuticals

hospital and medical
services devices business Total
ENBERRE HEERRBRREER H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE TR AREFT
External revenue ShFRU 806,83 19,312 826,143
Inter-segment revenue MEPI R - 23,834 23,834
Segment revenue D EpUEE 806,831 43,146 849,977
Eliminations HH - (23,834 (23,834)
Consolidated revenue el 806,83 19,312 826,143
Segment losses D EBEE (364,666) (608) (365,274)
Unallocated results KOMELE (57,490)
Loss before income tax BRETSRAE R (422,764)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the year ended 3| December 2018

TEER ()

BZE20I8F12A3IBLLEE

Supply of

Specialised pharmaceuticals

hospital and medical
services devices business Total
EMBRRS HEENLERRERS st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETT AEETT
External revenue ShFlER 981964 33026 1014990
Inter-segment revenue mEPIER - 53,059 53,059
Segment revenue ok G 981964 86,085 1,068,049
Eliminations Egfes = (53,059) (53,059)
Consolidated revenue el 981,964 33,026 1,014,990
Segment losses D EBEE (697,198) (6,003) (703201)
Unallocated results RAOBER (46,152)
Loss before income tax BRATISTLATE B (749,353)
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HE019F 2R3 BLLEE

9. AHEHRHE)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating and AEBREERABRENIHED 2 EE

reportable segment.

As at 31 December 2019

FEBEZHMMT -

20195128318

Supply of

Specialised pharmaceuticals

hospital and medical
services devices business Total
BENERERYE HEZRRERREER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARHFT AR¥FT
Segment assets DEEE 936,117 54,594 990,711
Goodwil kS 22,444 = 22,444
Unallocated assets Ko EE 368,472
Consolidated assets GRBE 1,381,627
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,002,836 1,927 1,004,763
Unallocated liabilities RAAEEEE 118,926
Consolidated liabilities mAEAE ,123,689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
As at 3| December 2018

PEE R ()
72018512831 H

Supply of

Specialised pharmaceuticals

hospital and medical
services devices business Total
ERERRG HEERREEREED Fo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEFIT AEEFIT AEEFIT
Segment assets DEEE 650,524 57,572 708,096
Goodwil kS 22,444 £ 22444
Unallocated assets Ko EE 479,665
Consolidated assets RABE 1,210,205
Segment liabilities DEEE 388,943 5,194 394,137
Unallocated liabilities RAAEEAE 137,897
Consolidated liabilities mAEAE 532,034
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

9. SEEHR (&)
HthoHER
BZE2019FE12A3IBLEEE

Supply of
Specialised  pharmaceuticals
hospital and medical
services  devices business Unallocated Total
HEHERK
ENBERRE BEREXRE R B #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARE T AR¥Fr AR® T
Depreciation and amortisation #7788 N 44 117,966 719 3,843 122,528
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment REER 6,075 - 105 6,180
Additions to non-current JemeE AL (i)
assets (note) 109,529 - 3,085 112,614
Impairment losses on EREEENRERE
right-of-use assets 267,266 - - 267,266
Impairment losses on property, — ¥1% - BB kR ED
plant and equipment HEEE 21,381 - - 21,381
Impairment losses on other Hip B & EH
intangible assets HEEE 528 - - 528
Fair value gain on contingent e ARBATE
consideration receivables Wz 1,429 = - 1,429
Reversal of impairment losses RO SEKTIEZ
on trade receivables HERE (1,315) - - (1,315)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £} @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 3| December 2018

9. SEEHR (&)
HithaHEH (F)
HBZE20I8F12A3IBLLEE

Supply of
Specialised pharmaceuticals
hospital and medical
services device business Unallocated Total
HIEEER
ERERRE  BERERS ADE #Bst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETFT ARETT AEETT
Depreciation and amortisation ~ $78& K#H 83,566 642 598 84,806
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment REER 552 - 553
Additions to non-current assets  FERENE 1L A0 (Pt )
(note) 404,133 46 449 404,628
Impairment losses on property, — ¥1% * BE R & ED
plant and equipment HEEE 107,189 - - 107,189
Impairment losses on goodwill BENRERR 189,978 = = 189,978
Impairment losses on other Hip &R
intangible assets REEE 135,199 = = 135,199
Fair value gain on contingent FHSAREBATE
consideration receivables Wi 10,990 = = 10,990
Impairment losses on trade B 5 UK IER
receivables HEEE 2015 = = 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)
Note:
Non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (2018: land

use right), other intangible assets and goodwill.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment results represent the profit before
tax earned by each segment, without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments and share of loss of associates not directly related to the respective segment,
which represents the internally generated financial information regularly reviewed by the
CODM. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources between
segments, all assets, liabilities and expenses of the Company and other holding companies are

presented as unallocated.

Income tax expenses have been allocated to segments as additional information regularly
provided to the CODM but not included in the measure of segment results while the
relevant deferred tax assets, deferred tax liabilities and tax payables have been allocated into

the segment assets and liabilities.

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group's revenue is derived from
activities in the PRC, and all of the Group's operations and major non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

No revenue from individual external customer contributing over 10% of total revenue of the

Group.

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

7 ERE R ()

Hitt BEHR (&)

PEE
FRBEERRENE - BERRE - ERE
BE (20185 : LIEMMRE) - EfthEVEE
REE -

ZE R G D RS T BOR B 4 AT
AEENGHHR R - DMEEEENH
FrERR D BLEL% 7 BB A B RITIRAX
K EZMEMEGBEDRBRORTA
B - BEREEREE FHEDNO A
BER - ARDRERKLE D BRER
ITRRERREZRNIE -

RERNBRARNENHEER - ARA
FEMERARZABEEE - AERAXY
SIRARAEE -

ERAXCOREESE D (EREHNRE
BRERRERMOBAER - B EDH
RERYESA  MEBELHELE R
ERBRRERENRBRDEED HEER
BfE-

ARAER2ERERATENEF AR
EREXBREIEERDEEDLATE -
A2 5 B

WERERINARF BRI A E = 2
5 10%A E °
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

10. OTHER INCOME 10.  EAKA
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFERA 126 1,321
Government grants BT 45 B 361 1,227
Interest income from loan receivables FEUE TR A S A 520 631
Interest income from amount due FEUS — Pl & A Al A B
from an associate - 3,454
Others i 2,981 1,179
3,988 7812
Il.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET . HAWsREEFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain B (E8),/ W (160) 222
Fair value gain on contingent WS AR B AT ELRER
consideration receivables 1,429 10,990
Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL IR AFEFABRZ
TREEES TR 7614 6,222
Net gain arising on bank financial products ~ $R{TIE I fh 2 e F 58 640 1,734
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERRENER
plant and equipment (6,180) (553)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note |3) HE M ARz Haas (B 13) 66,176 -
Gain upon cancellation of leases BUBME 2 e 128 -
Others Hity 455 (13)
70,102 18,602
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

12.  FINANCE COSTS 2. RERA
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARKETFL
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 26,658 -
Interest on other borrowings HEZFE 8,199 5,220
34,857 5,220

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019

By the end of May 2019, the Group had entered into disposal agreement with
independent third party, in which the Group would dispose 3,680 shares among
4,000 shares, being the entire shares owned by the Group, in issue of Shenzhen
HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd (the “Shenzhen
HarMoniCare") at a total cash consideration of RMBI,000,000 (the “Shenzhen
HarMoniCare Disposal”). The disposal was completed in May 2019.

Shenzhen HarMoniCare was principally engaged in the provision of obstetrics and

gynecology specialty hospital services.

By the end of July 2019, the Group had entered into disposal agreement with
independent third party, in which the Group would dispose the entire equity
interest of Wuhan Modern Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd.,
Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd.
(“Chongging Wanzhou") and Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co., Ltd. (‘Chongging
Dushi"), the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group (collectively referred as to the
“Disposal Subsidiaries”), at cash consideration of RMBI,400,000, RMB400,000 and
RMB400,000 respectively. The disposal of Chongging Wanzhou and Chongging
Dushi were completed in August 2019.

Disposal Subsidiaries were principally engaged in provision of obstetrics and

gynecology specialty hospital services.

13. HEHBAR

BZ2019F 12831 BLLEE
RN19FSAK - ARBEERHRBYE=
FAINEERE  AEEFNERER
B AR 1,000,0007T HERFYIFIELT
SRERARAR ([FIME]) HEHE
)2 5P B B 174,000 8% B2 17 7 §93,680 A%
(MRYIFEHESE]) - ZHEFEED
201945 ATER °

AYTXEBR S RBEEEFTHERR
%% o

RW19FE7TAE  AEEERBYE=
HEINHEHE  AEEESRINE S
REARE400,0007T « AR 400,000
TR ARE400000 T HEASERE
MEARRNERREERRERAR -
EEENMEREBRARAR ([EE
EMDREEBTEABRERAA
(TEEHM]) M2 HRE (GERIT
EMBRAF) - EEEMREEHT 2
HEDR2019F8 B -

HEMBAREREERUFEENE
B B 5 =
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

HEMB AR (F)
BZE2019F 12831 HIEEE (&)
REEBRH - FIFE  EEEMNKE

3. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)
The assets and liabilities of the Shenzhen HarMoniCare, Chongging Wanzhou,

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE

Chongging Dushi at the date of the disposal were as follows: EBHmHNEERABNT
Shenzhen Chongging Chongging
HarMoniCare Wanzhou Dushi Total
RYIF = EEENM EE#H st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥F ARBFTT ARBFTT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment 1% BB KR fE 27,584 1,389 5,775 34,748
Right-of-use assets EREEE 51,988 1,141 6,575 59,704
Other intangible assets Hih\mEE 10l 242 364 707
Other non-current assets HiEREEE 15 - 107 122
Rental deposits Meke 2,703 123 - 2,826
Inventories e} 1,716 367 859 2,942
Trade receivables B 5 EWGE 790 181 595 1,566
Prepayments, deposits and B Bk
other receivables H e IR IE 2,028 258 1,884 4,170
Cash and bank balances & MIR{THES 556 184 489 1,229
Trade payables B 5 IENKIE (930) (939) (2,443) 4,312)
Other payables Hip FEFIA (34,697) (1,458) (5,859) (42,014)
Tax payables ENTIE - - (249) (249)
Lease liabilities MEGE (53,048) (1,161) (6,678) (60,887)
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries fEfSF R KB A 7)5KIA (62,842) (3,600) (3,608) (70,050)
Net liabilities disposal of FrHE BEFE (64,036) (3,273) (2,189) (69,498)
Non-controlling interests RS 5,122 - - 5,122
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 EMIBA B2 Mz 59914 3,673 2,589 66,176
Total consideration BRE-BReX[
— satisfied by cash 1,000 400 400 1,800
Net cash inflow/(outflow) HEMEAZRSE
arising on disposal: A/ (Rt ) 58 -
Cash consideration received PR 2 e KB 1,000 400 400 1,800
Cash and cash equivalents FTtEzRie R
disposed of ReEED (556) (184) (489) (1,229)
444 216 (89) 571




4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

4. Fr8HiBExX

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax H B (RS
Current tax in the PRC F B RN ERFR 1R 2,140 13013
Deferred tax (note 38) EIETIA (FiEE38) 179 22,845
Income tax expense 2,319 35,858

The Company is a tax exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. ARRBRRESHETMRIHERE

MR RA]

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group did not have HAAEENAEE W B EMNEEF
assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the current year (2018: SHNERFEAE W ETREAT
Ni). SHBE (2018F : ) o

Under the EIT Law and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law in the PRC, the BEPBEEMESHERCEMERE
statutory EIT rate in the PRC is 25% (2018: 25%). In accordance with the approval B - PEAPAECEMRESHBEX
from the local taxation bureau in the PRC, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group £25% (20184F : 25%) ° RIEH B 7
were entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years ended 31 HRHBLE - B2 2019F R20I18F 12 A

December 2019 and 2018,

3REFEASESSHENEARE
B I5%EBBFEHHE o
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| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and loss before tax is as

4. FriSHipAx (&)

FRAS 15 B s S BR3¢ AT B 4R 10 S AR A0 T Al

follows: N
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ANEETFT

Loss before tax BRT AT BB (422,764) (749,353)
Tax at the applicable EIT rate of 25% HERTEMERE25%

STE B (105,691) (187,338)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TAMBRAX B BT E

tax purpose 73,527 121,102

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERVEEE BT E 33,305 53,128
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised ) e B AR TERRRITR IR IE 12 - (1,395)
Tax effect of the preferential income tax rate  BEFIERH RN EZE (5) (1,321)
Tax losses previously recognised and reversed 5t B FERR 8 Bl RO TR 5 48 1,183 51,682
Income tax expense FrEBiAxX (2319) (35,858)

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

I5.  LOSS FOR THE YEAR I5. FABE
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: AEEMERBBLENG (GTA) KR
TRIARER:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARHFT ARETFT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense TR AR T EHA 131,929 168,699
Auditor's remuneration A Gl EA 1,950 2,230
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment 47,712 70,605
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 71,439 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets Himy B EgH 3,377 [1,758
Amortisation of land use right e R = 2443
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREHESE 122,528 84,806
(Reversal of)/impairment losses EHEE (&E),/
on various assets, net REEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 267,266 —
Property, plant and equipment ER 21,381 107,189
Goodwil AE - 189,978
Other intangible assets Hih\mEE 528 135,199
Amounts due from related parties JE LK RS 75 7RI 17 1,280
Trade receivables g 5 ENGIA (1,315) 2015
Loan receivables R E R = 6,500
Prepayments, deposits and BAFR - Re Rk
other receivables Hoh eI RIE 2,318 16,465
290,195 558,626
Operating lease rentals in respect MEYZRRANEE
of rental premises - 139,915
Expenses related to short term leases AT SRR X 9,196 =
Directors’ emoluments (note 16) eI EANS) 3,375 2,017
Other staff costs H A& B A
Salaries, bonus and allowances ¥e - EA KR 415,746 409,319
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ iRIKEFIFTEIHE R 41,840 42,993
457,586 452,312
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| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

16. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set

6.

BEENANBREHALTEHM
BEEHE019F 1A BILEE 2%

out below: [ERI g
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
21 RIER
REMAz= FTEIERR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARMFT ARMFTT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming MERESE 1,287 28 1,315
Mr. Zhao Xingli HE k4 497 6 503
Mr. Fang Zhifeng Pals . Vikas 950 7 957
Non-Executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBEAE - - -
Mr. Qiu Jianwei EELE = = =
Mr. Xu Jun BELE - - -
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Kong Aiguo HLEBR%SE 200 - 200
Ms. Fang Lan FRZLT 200 = 200
Mr. Cai Jiangnan ETREEE 200 - 200
Total st 3334 41 3,375
HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « MEBEEIZEREMRA T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

6. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set

6.

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HE019F 2R3 BLLEE

EERANVKRSHALHH ()

BEEHR018FEN AN BIEE 2%

out below: EET T
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Ee =1 RIRTERI
REWN & BE e st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTE ANREFTE ANREFTE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Lin Yuming MEREE 576 9 585
Mr. Zhao Xingli HE k4 447 12 459
Mr. Fang Zhifeng Pl yike 366 7 373
Non-Executive Directors HPTEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBLE - - -
Mr. Qiu Jianwei B St - - -
Mr. Xu Jun RELE - - -
Independent Non-executive BUIHTEE
Directors
Mr. Kong Aiguo HLERESE 200 - 200
Ms. Fang Lan ARELT 200 - 200
Mr. Cai Jiangnan BTmkE 200 - 200
Total #B5T 1,989 28 2017

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £}



'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

16. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the both year not included
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

emoluments of the five individuals are set out below:

l6. BEERANGSEHATEMH (&)

LfusEHFAL
AEERMEFEAcAUZRHAL
(TERER) ZHMR EX 252D
ARBR - AfzA L2 FHEETIT -

2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AR¥FT
Salaries and allowance e MR 5312 3,867
Performance related bonuses RIBHRIEAT 327 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFIFT 23R 227 16
5,866 3,883

The emoluments fell within the following band: FNFATEE -

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
20195 20184F
Below HK$ 1,000,000 1,000,000/ T LA - 4
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0007 7T 2 |,500,0005 7T 5 [
5 5

During the years ended 3| December 2019 and 2018, no directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB334,048,000 (2018: RMB725,299,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 720,560,000 (2018: 738,776,000) in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

There is no dilution factor for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted eamings per share has been adjusted with taking into account the shares
purchased and held by the trustee of Company's Restricted Share Incentive Scheme

for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

RE
HE09FNA3IBILFE ST
FBRA RIS (018F : T) o

BREE

SREXNEE
ARABEANEBLHEREREED
BRARBHEREANBGEEANBEOA
R #334,048,0007C (20185 : ARK
725299,0007T) R EF A BT IE T
@A B E 720,560,0008% (2018 4F :
738,776,0000% ) 51 & o

SREEEE
HEWIOER20I8FI12A3IBILFE
RBAEESRE -

A TEREAR REERF| 2 T
BERREE B RREEE2019F R
20185 12 A3 BIEFEBRARRIRGIME
BB EETHETARBELRE
HIRR D BB TEL % -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

19.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. ¥% - BERRKE

Leasehold land Leasehold Medical Motor Furniture ~ Construction
and buildings  improvements equipments vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
HETHR BEYE
g7 &6 EERi RE BERRE rRIE a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBTL  AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFR
COST 8
At | January 2018 R0I8EIA1A 37234 250926 195036 1315 551 45,055 593558
Addtons AE 2915 26869 14723 1189 549 9296| 4149
Transfer g2 - 24962 - - - (2496)) =
Acquired on acquisiton of subsiciaries ~ WEEHTBAAREA - 36434 9,085 3 7181 49944 103007
Disposdls e - - (43149 (1277) (1580) 3 717
At 31 December 2018 and | January 2019 20185 12431 B )
WIEIAIA 40,149 339,91 214530 13450 63245 16299 833563
Addtons AE - 4734 5619 4 1949 67645 799l
Tranfer LEF | - B8 10358 - 7 (34053) -
Disposal of subsidaries (note 13) L EREAE (H313) - (53,585) (47574) (13%3) (955) - (112049)
Disposdls e - (11021) (3570) (2947) @17 - (19,655)
At 3 December 2019 RM019E 128318 40,149 30294 179373 9174 53593 196,590 781,821
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ~ RiHAE R iER
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2018 R0I8EIAIA 11010 130974 %9967 10026 40797 - 12774
Charge for the year ERxH 10 41337 21 606 66 4578 - 70,605
Eiminated on disposals HEREH - - (3669) (114) (13%) - (6189)
Impainent losses AEER 12075 50264 28349 Tl 5213 10547 107,189
At 31 Decernber 2018 and | January 2019 R2018E 12A31 AR
WIEIAIA 25,507 MST5 144253 10305 9193 10547 464,380
Charge for the year ERRH 1,260 28070 13916 586 3860 - 47712
Transler B+ - 10547 - - - (10547) -
Eiminated on disposals HERER - (5529) (2930) (2800) (182) - (13,080)
Impairment losses AEER 1,804 14970 4164 | ) - 21,381
Disposal of subsidares (note 13) EMBAR (W 3) - (38009) (30.170) (1104 (8017) - (77300)
At 31 December 2019 B019E 128318 28591 232625 131,33 6988 43656 - 443,09
CARRYING AMOUNTS BEE
At 31 December 2019 #0198 12A318 11,558 70317 48140 2186 9937 196,590 338728
At 31 December 2018 B0I8F 128318 14642 116616 6277 3145 14052 152451 39,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 19. ¥%¥ - BWERRZE (&)
During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group carried out review of BIE2009F12A3I1BLEFE - AR
the recoverable amount of its property, plant and equipment as a result of the AEEEBTSRL  AEEHEY
deterioration of the markets of the Group's business. These assets are used in the ¥ BERREHIKESEETR
Group's specialised hospital services segment. The reviews led to the recognition of e RBEEERRAEENERER
an impairment losses of approximately RMB21,381,000 (2018: RMB107,189,000) RIS - I BRI EBELY
have been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 3| December 2019. AER¥21381,0007T (20184 : ARK
The recoverable amount of the relevant assets of RMB338,728,000 (2018 107,189,0007T) EREE2019412 A3
RMB369,183,000) has been determined on the basis of their value in use using AIEFEZBR AR - HEEERNT]
discounted cashflow method (level 3 fair value measurements). The discount rate W el& 58 A A KE338,728,0007T (2018
used was 18 (2018: 18) per cent. F: AR¥369,183,0007T) R {F AALIE

Reng%(F=RLTEHE)NE
REEEEET - FANBERAIS
(20184 : 18)% e

20. LAND USE RIGHT 20. THb{FERRE
RMB’000

AREFT
COST AR
At | January 2018 and 3| December 2018 72018451 A1 B N20I18%F 12731 8 120,175
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 2t
At | January 2018 7201841 A1 B 1,019
Charge for the year FAZH 2,443
At 3| December 2018 M20I18F 12 A31H 3462
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 3| December 2018 M2018%F 12 A31H 116,713
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

2|. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

21, HEREHAEESE

Disclosures of lease-related items: WEHSREEE :
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARB¥Fr
At 3| December: RI2A318 :
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Leasehold land — gL 114,271
— Land and buildings — T REF 314,671
428,942

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the Group's lease

liabilities is as follows:

ENAURRERENAEEEERE
REEERAMT

2019
20195
RMB’000
AREFT
— Less than | year — —FHUR 110,276
— Between | and 2 years - —EmF 91,691
— Between 2 and 5 years —MERF 231,253
— Over 5 year —hFNE 420,957
854,177
Year ended 31 December: BENAINBLFE :
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERAREENERX
~ Leasehold land —HETH 2,442
— Land and buildings — T REF 68,997
71,439
Lease interests HERNE 26,658
Expenses related to short-term leases R HIMA SRR X 9,196
Total cash outflow for leases MEREMLARE (73,734)
Additions to right-of-use assets EINERERE 32,070
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FEREEEREESE 267,266
Remeasurement from early termination of leases EfRAR L AEmEHTE
— Decrease in right-of-use assets —EREEERD 5,163
— Decrease in lease liabilities - HEaERD> 5291
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
— Decrease in right-of-use assets — EAEEERD 59,704
— Decrease in lease liabilities - HEaERSD 60,887
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group leases various land use rights and land and buildings. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods of 1.5 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets may not

be used as security for borrowing purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group carried out review of the
recoverable amount of its right-of-use assets as a result of the deterioration of the
markets of the Group's business. These assets are used in the Group's specialised
hospital services segment. The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment
losses of approximately RMB267,266,000 have been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 3| December 2019. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets
of RMB450,570,000 has been determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cashflow method (level 3 fair value measurements). The discount rate

used was |8 per cent.

21.

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

HEREHEEE (R)

AEEHERBLMEREAR LK
BT HEWHE—RIRISES0FME
EHRBIET - MERRDRE R A LR
AET - LB S BB RER SR
MEHETEMEARE  AEEEE
NS R ER -

BHE2009F12A3IBLEFE  AREE
Exmmnail AEEHAEFHREER
ERRNE S EETRG - ZREEER
RESENZERBRESE S - 8
BERREEEAARE267,2660007T
EREZE2019F12A3IBIEFE 28R
NHER - MABEENFATREEER/AR
#450,570,000 TR E AU RR R EE
(B=RATENE) EAEBEEEEE
E o EAMRIRER18%
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| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

22. GOODWILL 2. B8
RMB’000
AREFT
COST B
At | January 2018 201851 A 1A 122,283
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries R B R E 4 90,139
At 31 December 2018, | January 2019 and R201812A318 20191 AIB R
31 December 2019 20194 12431 H 212,422
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES Rt REER
At | January 2018 R20I185F 1 AR -
Impairment losses HERE 189,978
At 31 December 2018, | January 2019 and R2018F12A318 ~ 2019F 1 AIBR
3| December 2019 2019% 128318 189,978
CARRYING AMOUNT RREE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 22,444
At 31 December 2018 2018512318 22,444

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the

cash generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from that business

combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to specialised

hospital services segment and had been allocated to two individual CGU (2018:

two) as follows:

REBE M FERES R IER S
ERHEIENZEBEHIREES
B ([ReELEN]) - mEEARED
DEEEERBRRBE DS - WHRE T LA
TRERERREEESBM (2018F : M
@) :

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE¥F AREFT
Nantong Hemeijia Hospital (‘“CGU A" MBMERER
([REeEEBERA] 4,019 4019
Hibaby (‘CGU B") SLEN ([FReEEEMB]) 18,425 18,425
22,444 22,444
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

GOODWILL (Continued)
CGU A — Nantong Hemeijia Hospital

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of 8%
(2018: 18%). CGU A's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the forecast inflation rate
of China, considering that the growth rate will not exceed the forecast inflation
rate of the country. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and management's

expectations for the market development.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the above assumptions would not cause the aggregate

carrying amount of CGU A to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU A.

CGU B — Hibaby

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of 8%
(2018: 18%). CGU B's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the forecast inflation rate
of China, considering that the growth rate will not exceed the forecast inflation
rate of the country. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and management's

expectations for the market development.

At 3| December 2019 and 2018, Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the above assumptions would not cause the aggregate

carrying amount of CGU B to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU B.

22.

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

BE (&)
BeELENA-ERNERER
ZBEMMAKEEEREEAEER
BET - &t BERREBEEREER
ESFHNMBEENRRTER KA
BE18% (20185 « 18%) fEih - B E
HBUANBRALSFHNRERDE
ARTEERRINHESE - ZBREXTHE
RABRBABRE B RAZERET
SHEATENEIRBRE -t EERE
ENEMFERISEEERAH
it (BREBEEHEREM) - BRAfk
ARG EMHNBERRLEREY
T5ERNTESAEL -

R2019F K2018F12A318 - EBRE
RAEM R RRAER SRR
BreRFReELBNANSG 1R
ﬁtﬂﬁ%?iEuAmmATW@%
o

BeELENB-HER

ZEMH A E S B IREEREER
BET - ZEERREBERER AR
ESFHNMBEENR S RIEA R
HFE18% (20184 : 18%) fEH - HEE
HBABMBEZSFHNR SR ER
BERREIBEE - ZEREDER
HEMENBRE AR BZERETE
TBRPENERBRE - SEFAER
HEMEZBRIFRALTAKE
st (BEEEHERERN) - B@MEE
DERZENNBERRREREHT
BERIOTEMEL -

R2019F K2018F12A318 * EBEE
RRE A RER Y E & T2 ] B &
BreRFEReEEEMRNERER
BERBREELBMUBMNEHEITKES
8o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR RMEE @
For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HBZEWI9F 12 A3 BILEE
23. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23, HiEEEE
Medical
licenses
(note)
Software Trademark EREyR Total
B 5] (BfisE) @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥T T AR¥TT ARKFT
COST 5%
At | January 2018 2018 | A1 B 12519 33,200 108,500 154,219
Additions NE 2513 = = 2513
Acquired on acquisition of W B — FEIPH I A BIRE AR A

a subsidiary = = 64,800 64,800
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12431 B &

| January 2019 20191 A1 B 15,032 33,200 173,300 221,532
Additions NE 583 = = 583
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT (FEE3)

(note 13) 2,091 = = 2,091
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124318 13,524 33200 173,300 220024
ACCUMULATED 2 EERAESR

AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2018 201851 A I B 5,38| 9,406 3,252 18,039
Charge for the year FAXH 2,154 3320 6,284 11,758
Impairment loss REEE 2323 20474 112,402 135,199
At 31 December 2018 and 2018F 12431 B &

| January 2019 20191 A1 B 9,858 33,200 121,938 164,996
Charge for the year FRX 1,208 - 2,169 3377
Impairment loss HEEE 528 = = 528
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBARR

(note 13) (PiE13) (1,384) - - (1,384)
At 31 December 2019 2019512 A31 B 10210 33,200 124,107 167517
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2019 2019812 A31H 3314 = 49193 52,507
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31 H 5,174 = 51,362 56,536
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, before the impairment and amortisation, the amount of
medical license identified and derived from the acquisition of Beijing Baiziwan, Heilongjiang
HarMoniCare Hospital and Nantong Hemeijia Hospital of approximately RMB64,800,000,
RMB61,900,000 and RMB46,600,000 respectively.

Management considered that the above other intangible assets have finite useful
lives. Such other intangible assets are accordingly amortised on a straight-line basis

over the following periods:

Software

gt
Trademark
[l

Medical licenses

BENR

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its other intangible
assets in 2019 and 2018 as a result of the deterioration of the markets of the
Group's business. These assets are used in the Group's specialised hospital services
segment. The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss of RMB528,000
(2018: RMBI35,199,000) for other intangible assets that have been recognised in
profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets of RMB52,507,000
(2018: RMB56,536,000) has been determined on the basis of their value in use
using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value measurements). The discount

rate used was 18 (2018: 18) per cent.

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

23. HtBEEE (&)
ek -
20198 %2018 12831 B » RIBER#
AT - ORI R T 7 - BRIME
B kmBMERBRMNEHEENR
SED R AARE 64,800,000 « AR
61,900,0007T B A R #46,600,0007T ©

BEBRR/LMEMENEEREER
AR - ZFEMELEERIR
T HRIRE A

5—10 years
SEI0F

10 years
105

25 years
254

2019 R20I185F - RN AKE XK
it AREHHEHEMBTEERN]
WESBETRN - ZFEERNEAE
EHERIERRB D o T EEER
Hih &R & EREEEBARKS528000
T (20184 « AKR®135,199,0007T) 2
REBEZ AR - HAEEN RO EEE
AARES52,507,0007T (2018%F : AR
#56,5360007T) BEMRBFERE)

(B=RATENE)WEREBEET -
FRHBEIREAI18(2018% : 18)% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

24, REZENT 2EDR

2019 2018
20194 20185
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETF T
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted X BB E AT L
A — R LT 13,186 37921
Share of post-acquisition losses and PEWEE R EE R
other comprehensive income Hip 2wk (5,894) (11,440)
7,292 26481
Less: Disposal of an associate " HEEE AR
— Cost of investments —REBEREZ
in associates — unlisted BXAR — R T = (24,735)
— Share of post-acquisition losses and — DElERERR
other comprehensive income Hh 2 E U a = 5719
7,292 7465

@ HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED + FEBEEZRERLD



24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

24. REENTzER (E)
AEBERBENRANRERRZFHED

follow: K

Country of

incorporation/

registration and

principal place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting
Name of the entity business interest held by the Group  rights held by the Group ~ Nature of business

AL/ AREFRRZ
BiRsH BXREEEXNY  FRRRERNA  AREFSECREELA XBME

2019 2018 2019 2018
WI19E 018% 019% 0185
Harmonicare International Medical Group Limited Hong Kong 34% 30% 34% 30%  IVFIntemational referral platform
*REREREEERAT &b AEERRERED YA
Selford Medical Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd. The PRC 20% 20% 20% 20%  Technical extension service provision of
enterprise [T products and services
EAREANR (LR BRAT G RECRTERRREORITER
%
Beijing DeepHealthcare Management and The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30%  IVFIntemational referral platform
Consultation Co, Ltd
IRERERERAAARLA) G AEERERED A
Shenzhen DeepHealthcare Overseas Medical The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  IVF Intemational referral platform
Senvice Co, Ltd.

AERENEBRREARLA P AEERERED YA

On 8 November 2018, the Group acquired 48.53% of equity interests of Hibaby
for cash consideration of RMB30,252,500. The Group obtained control by

increased the shareholding of Hibaby to 98%.

R2018F 11 A8A - REBURERE
AR#30,252,500 7T Y BB 5l B #348.53%
HIRRHE o NESE R IA KB B MR AR RS
ZIBUIEIFIETIHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 24, REE ARz ER (K)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of the amounts of all TRAER TG RAEEE A ERE
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity method. ANRRPTE ERIZEEREE R RIFTA S
B o
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT
The Group's share of loss from AEERGHE
continuing operations REEER (173) (4,470)
The Group's share of other AEBEEEM2ERA
comprehensive income - 138
The Group's share of total AEERGZEERER
comprehensive loss (173) (4332
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ ANEBERZEHE A FZ
interests in these associates w2 AFTREE 7,292 7,465
25.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 5. BRAVERABRSZEMEE
2019 2018
2019F 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT
Loan to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital BT EHNEER 8N 185,766 165,845

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE



25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

In October 2016, the Group entered into a cooperation agreement and a
supplementary agreement (the “Agreements”) with the equity owners of Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital. According to the Agreements, the Group agreed to lend
an aggregate amount of RMB64,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital in three
batches, subject to the fulfilment of certain criteria stated therein, including that
Wuxi HarMonicare Hospital will obtain the medical license before 30 June 2019.
The loan is secured by the 80% equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital.
Under the Agreements, the Group has the right to exercise one of the three
options: (1) to request for the loan repayment with interest; (2) to convert the loan
into the equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital based on the audited result;
or (3) to acquire the 80% equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital from its

equity owners based on the actual capital fully paid up by the equity owners.

In October 2016, pursuant to the Agreements, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (‘the Loan Agreements I") with Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. Up to
31 December 2016, the Group had advanced the first two batches of loan with
an aggregate amount of RMB48,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. The loan
bears prevailing bank borrowing interest rate at 4.75% per annum, with maturity
date on 30 June 2019.

In April 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement (“the
Supplementary Agreement |") modified the payment clause of the Loan
Agreement |, which stipulates that the Group would pay the remaining amount of
RMB16,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital ten days after the supplementary

agreement was signed.

25.

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

BRAFEFABRZERMEE ()
R2016F 108 AEBEEEHNERE
b2 IRERE AGT L — D& fEiE R —
R ([ZEHE] - REZER

RHE B AR %64,0000007T + #
RREAMEMEE TIREERE LA
1EE - BREEHNERRER2019F6
A0 BAEGBENR - ZEXHED
FEE BT 2 80% R EMEE IR - RIZZSF
& - ARBEERITE Y ZIHRERE
MEF—F: (WVEXERFEEE:
QRBEZERGETERAEHNE
Bl 2 IRHE  JO)VRRERBAER
BROBERMESREEHNERR 2
80% R 1% o

R216F 108 - RIFZF R - A5E
REHMERR Y —HERRE(E
RaEI]) c EE2016F 128318
AEBERESNEBRINEME
B3 5 A AKH48,000,0007T © 5
EREFRBITRITEERNE475%5
B 3201966 A30H EH -

R201754 8 REBF U H T HZE
(MExRHR )  HERHRIOZE
FETER]  EPRAEAEEENEE
MR BREE T AX M REBNE B IE
HEAIEREE AR 16,000,0007T ©
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

25.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

According to the Agreements signed in October 2016, the Group will provide a
loan to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital at 80% of investment amount that exceeds
RMB80,000,000. In June 2017, pursuant to the Agreements, the Group entered
into a new loan agreement (“the Loan Agreement II”) with an aggregate amount of
RMB32,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital.

In January 2018, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement (the
“Supplementary Agreement ") modified that the Group will provide a loan
to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital at 96% of investment amount that exceeds
RMB160,000,000. The loan is revised to be secured by 96% equity interest of Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital. Under the Supplementary Agreement I, the Group has the
right to exercise one of the three options: (1) to request for the loan repayment
with interest; (2) to convert the loan into the equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare
Hospital based on the audited result; or (3) to acquire the 96% equity interest of
Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital from its equity owners based on the actual capital

fully paid up by the equity owners.

In February 2018, pursuant to the Supplementary Agreements Il, the Group
entered into a new loan agreement (“the Loan Agreement IlI") with an aggregate
amount of RMB56,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. The loan bears
prevailing bank borrowing interest rate at 4.75% per annum, with maturity date on
6 February 2020.

In November 2018, pursuant to the Supplementary Agreements Il, the Group
entered into a new loan agreement (“the Loan Agreement V") with an aggregate
amount of RMB30,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital, in which approximately
RMB16,207,000 (2018: RMB3,900,000) had been paid by the Group to Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital. The loan bears prevailing bank borrowing interest rate at

4.75% per annum, with maturity date on 30 November 2020.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE

25.

BRAVEFARSCEHEE (F)
RIBEMR2016F 10 ARENZZ HE -

(BB A R # 80,000,000 TTHIZB 2 ) 80%
KER - R2017F6 A - BEZER
# - AREFHERGE ((EXikE
1)) - mEHMEBRIEHBEARE
32,000,0007C °

R2018F 1A AEBII L H T HE
([ExmREID) - EhET KEEH
MESNERRERERERE (BB
AER¥ 160,000,000 TTHIEE D) 96% M E
R REFEUAREHNERER 2
96%IREMEE IR - REWMR I - &K
SEERTETY D HREBRENEP—
H:(WEKERFEEE  QBEE
BRERGERERAEHNERR 2R
RO ERERE ABERBZNER
)15 S U BB A SR RN R B B 2 9696 IR AEE o

R2018F2A - REBAMEI - A%
Bily—mHERG®E ([EXHGE
) - mEBMEBRRELEARK
56,000,0007C ° Z B ARG FIRBITRIT
fEERE475%5T 8 - WHK20206F2H6
AEIE -

R2018F 11 A REMAHREI - A
KB —hHERGE ([ERiHE
V1) MESNERREREBAR
#30,000,0007TC * EH - ARECME
HMEBR AL AR 16,207,0007T
(20184 = AR¥39000007T) ° ZE XK
BERBITRITEEMNX475%1 8
WH2020% 11 A30BZIH -



25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Wuxi HarMoniCare had not obtained the

medical license and had not commenced operation. The loan granted under the

four loan agreements and three supplementary agreements contain embedded

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

25. RAFEFAERZZEREE (F)
R2019F K%2018F 128318 - EHF
FEREARGERAR  twRAKRE
¥ - RENOER BRI =MHERIHE

derivatives and is classified as a financial assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition. BHNERBERANTETR « W7
N BERRSERRATEFABRZ
EREE -
26. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES 26. BUREHANKE
2019 2018
20194 20185
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFIT AEEFT
Profit guarantee — Non-current AR — BN = 4,087
Profit guarantee — Current R RTE — RED 12,419 6903
12,419 10,990

Profit guarantee represents the guarantee provided by the Guarantors, in favour
of the Group, as a purchaser in respect of the acquisition of Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital, of which audited net profit of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital for each of
the years ended 3| December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 shall not be less than
RMB18,000,000 respectively. In event of non-fulfillment of the Profit Guarantee,
the Guarantors shall compensate to the Group by 51% of the aggregate amount of

shortfall of the relevant guarantee period(s) in cash.

i M R FE B ER A PTIRE MR REE - UK
SRAXBA  BRBRANERBRHE
RER  EY BANEXRERHEZE2017
F 20185 ~ 2019F %2020F 12 A31 B It
EEENRERINEEDMTLRARE
18,000,0007T © fisl i FI4R & REEZERK - TRA
AUREFARNASEREFHERIEA
ZEBHIS | %RFIA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

26. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. EWHARE (&)
As a result of the deterioration of the markets of the Group's specialised RRASEERIER RS D B TSR
hospital services segment and the decline of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital's AR BN ER BB EE TR
financial performance, the fair value of the contingent consideration receivables BWR2019F 12431 BEKSEARER
of approximately RMB 12,419,000 (2018: approximately RMB10,990,000) at FEHARE12,419,0007T (20184
31 December 2019 is estimated based on the valuation carried out by Asia- # AR 10,990,0007T) THHERREARE
Pacific Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent professional valuer not B EEEN B Y ERMEMEANT
connected with the Group. In result, fair value change of contingent consideration HBRAERDDETHEENMGE -
receivables of approximately RMB,429,000 (2018: approximately RMB10,990,000) I BRHARBZ ATEZDHY
had been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019. The fair value AR 1,429,0007T (20185 - HHAREK
measurement of the contingent consideration receivables is stated in note 7 of the 10,990,0007T) EREZ2019F 12 A31
consolidated financial statement. AIEFEERR - RRSAREBZ AT
B EHENGRA M BRRMELT -
27. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 27. HthREMEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AEETT
Deposits of acquisitions of businesses EhEEe 5,000 37,600
Deposits of other borrowings HibfEmige 8,000 8,000
Prepayment of operating lease rentals AR EHEEES = 6,289
Advance purchase of property, EEME - BEKEE
plant and equipment 931 5912
13,931 57,801

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

28. INVENTORIES 28. FE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
Pharmaceuticals @ 6,711 23,102
Medical devices and consumables Bk B REM 16,726 10,644
23,437 33746

29. LOAN RECEIVABLES 29. EWER
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT
Fixed-rate loan receivables FREWKER 6,500 6,500
Less: Impairment losses B ORERE (6,500) (6,500)

All of the loan receivables are unsecured credit borrowings and with maturity of
one year. As at 3| December 2019 and 2018, the fixed-rate loan receivables was 8%

per annum.

Before accepting any new borrower, the Group carries out research on the
creditability of the new borrower and assesses the potential customer's credit
quality and defines loan terms with borrower. The credit of the borrowers granted

with loans are reviewed once a year.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual loan receivable
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amount. For the year ended 3| December 2018,
the reviews led to the recognition of an impairment losses of approximately
RMB6,500,000 have been recognised in profit or loss.The directors of the Company
believe that there is no allowance or impairment required for the year ended 31
December 2019.

FrERWEFRY AEIBHEAER
—FE|E - PB2019F K% 20184 12 A3
H ' BUEREGFETHELE8% -

REMEMFERAR - AEEEHE
HERAEE  HEEERFZEEE
ERRAEERAZERFH - BRER
HERAZEERR B FRT—IR -

AERBERBEHREHEERRKE
KA E 58 - URRA B
SRELRARERE - BE2018F
2R3 BIEEE - ABRGT IR
EBELH AR 6,500,000t B R B2EHE
R RARESIERE - BE2019F12A
3| B EBAELBERRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES 30. BZEWFEIR
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT
Trade receivables B 5 NE0E 54,609 58279
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (2,665) (3.980)
Trade receivables, net B HRYGIE - F8 51,944 54,299
The Group allows a credit period of approximately 60 days to 180 days (2018: 60 AEBRRBAREENER RS REKE
days to 180 days) for the specialised hospital services to the patients which are due BREEREEFIENEESR—RL
from medical and commercial insurance program, and O day to 90 days (2018: 0 H60ZE 180K (2018F : 60E 180K)
days to 90 days) for the sale of pharmaceuticals and medical devices after issuing MiHEEmRBERENEERRFAL
invoice. BREHI0EIOR (20185 : 0EI0K) °
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of BHRWIARERHH (HREE)
allowance, is as follows: ZERROITIT
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT
Within 90 days 90RA 14,963 21,095
91 to 180 days 9IZE 180K 1,177 3218
181 days to | year 181 RE | F 3,834 | 1,445
Over | year i | F 31,970 18,54
51,944 54,299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 30. EZEWRIE(F)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: g HRENGIAEER B2 Bk
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
At the beginning of year REA 3,980 1,965
(Decrease)/Increase in loss allowance FREERE
for the year CRl),/ $8hn (1,315) 2015
At the end of year RER 2,665 3,980
The Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to provide for expected AEBRABERT B RS EREIRE
credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To TZBIERE - BREESRKFIAR
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based AR EREREREEBEN
on shared credit risk characteristics and the invoice date aging. The expected credit REME - RETERBEEHE B9k
losses also incorporate forward looking information. WHREEREAZERRBRSBRER
RERRECETTHA - REIEEBETE
BATEILEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 30. EZEWEE ()
Within 91 to 181 days Over |
90 days 180 days to | year year Total
KA 9IZEIX IBIXEIE HBBIF At
At 31 December 2019 201912831 B
Weighted average expected loss rate  JAEF I TRHAIE K K 0% 0% 0% 7.7%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) FE IR SRR
(ARETT) 14,963 1,177 3,834 34,635 54,609
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEEEs (ARETT) - - - 2,665 2,665
Within 91 to 181 days Over |
90 days 180 days to | year year Total
0RA 9IEIOK IBIXKEIF  BBIF st
At 3| December 2018 20185 12A31H
Weighted average expected loss rate  J#EFI9TEAR1E K X 0% 0% 0.4% 17.5%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) FEWRIE S 5R
(AREBTFT) 21,095 3218 11,494 22472 58,279
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BiREm (AR%TT) = - 49 3931 3,980
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

31.  PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 3. MR RERHEAEKFR
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT
Deposits paid for the proposed RENBEXBENZES
acquisitions of businesses 15,000 15,000
Prepaid rental BRHE - 24,380
Prepayments to suppliers R ERH IR 89,949 65,134
Deposits to suppliers T HERREe 14,013 24,865
Consideration receivable for B AR mA R (E
interests of an associate - 2,031
Other receivables H it YRR 77,994 35411
196,956 166,821
32. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 32. RMIOKRBETHEER
Bank balances carried interest at prevailing market rates which range from 0.01% to M2019F 12831 B + SRITHEHRIARTT
0.3% per annum as at 3| December 2019 (2018: 0.01% to 0.53%). TS ERENF001%203%(2018% :

001%ZE053%) 5T 2 °

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of the Group denominated R2019F12A318 » REERR
in RMB amounted to RMB22,142,000 (2018: RMB100,404,000). Conversion TRBReHESRUARKEE  EA
of RMB into foreign currencies subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control F#22,142,0007C (20184 : AR
Regulations. 100,404,0007T) - AR R BRBINET

REISMNEE I IRHIAR o
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

33. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

33. BEZEMSFE

ERMNFENRERREERANZ

date at the end of the reporting period: Sl Z BREAITIAT

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ANEETFT
Within 90 days 90ARA 13,091 19413
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 2,708 2674
181 days to | year 181 RE|F 12,164 8,301
Over | year BB | F 19,206 2,668
47,169 33,056

34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 34. HttENFUARESER
2019 2018
20195 20185
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AEETT
Contract liabilities (note) ARG () 103,904 124,490
Staff cost payables FEIE B A A 53,514 43719
Construction fee payables JERTE%ER 59,906 41,051
Accrued rental expenses fEstiHE R - 4,589
Other PRC tax payables HAD e P EIRIR 1,598 1,408
Deposit from suppliers HEEZE 3,074 4779

Consideration payable for acquisition Y SRR s ) R MK (B

of non-controlling interest 30,242 30,242
Others it 43,121 11,209
295,359 261,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FEMBEHRRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HE019F 2R3 BLLEE

Note: Bisx
2019 2018
2019F 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT
Contract liabilities Anam 103,904 124,490
Transaction prices allocated to performance DEEEFERHARTHHIEL
obligations unsatisfied at end of year and BEENTEHRTIIFEE
expected to be recognised as revenue in: BRRRENR HER :
-2019 —2019%F - 124,490
—-2020 —20206F 103,904 -
103,904 124,490
Revenue recognised in the year that was FMEAGHNEEL
included in contract liabilities at beginning REEHERH U S
of year 124,490 75,173
Significant changes in contract liabilities FEANEENERE
during the year:
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) B 1 &IE A Al (HizE3) (12,576) =
Increase due to operations in the year REELEMmME N 426,475 512,920
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue ERAHNBEZ KA (416,237) (454,575)
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| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B BRI E @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

35. PROVISION

Provision for

B

Provision for

medical dispute

onerous leases claims
(note i) (note ii) Total
BRMEERE BRUDEEES st

(BitaEi) (=)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AR¥FT ARMTFT
At | January 2018 201851 A 1A - 900 900
Provision Bi& 41,337 3,097 44434
Payments E - (1,096) (1,096)
As at 31 December 2018 R20185F12A31H 41,337 2901 44,238

Effect of changes in accounting SEHRE

policies (note 3) 2 %% (fE3) (41,337) - (41,337)
Payments DE - (1,245) (1,245)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F 128318 - 1,656 1,656
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

35. PROVISION (Continued)

Notes:

)

In December 2017, the Group had initiated the expansion plan in investing in Xiamen
HarMoniCare Hospital and the Group, as the lessee, entered into a non-cancellable
|5 years term lease contract with independent third parties (the “Landlord”) for a
planned floor area of approximately 19,200 square meters for Xiamen HarMoniCare

Hospital.

Due to the development of Xiamen HarMoniCare Hospital had been delayed, the
directors of the Company had negotiated with the Landlord on early termination of
the lease contract during the year ended 31 December 2019. By the end of the year
2019, the early termination of the lease contract had been mutually agreed by the
Group and the Landlord with further 6 months rental compensation liable from the

Group to the Landlord.

As the above executory lease contracts is onerous contract, a provision is required to
the extent for which the related unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received, hence, provision
for onerous contract of approximately RMB41,337,000 had been recognised for the
year ended 3| December 2018.

The provision for onerous contract is reclassified to right-of-use assets in 2019.

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising from its
normal business operations. The directors of the Company assess the exposure and
an outflow of economic benefits on certain major medical disputes existed at the
end of the reporting period based on the best estimate of the management and the

opinion of the external legal advisors.

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

R2017F 128 - AEEEFRBREFH
ZER 2 IRERBEE - AKE (fF
BEBA)BBYE=F ([£x])
HEFIMEERANABIRERRY
19200 5 KT — 1 BH I5FRT
AHREHEESD -

AREIEEREEMIMEER - 82
019FNA3IALEFE - ARFES
BHEETHHRAMNEULHESD - B
019FE « RAKIEHESHBELR
SEEETFETHTE  MAKEER
EXXEINEANESFHE -

AR ERETREANBEBES
X BEERANETERIEBZE
BAMEeE AR ABHNGE LR
FlammEEn - Al - BEEELZ
BEHARBE41,337,000cEREBE
2018F 12431 BILFEHER °

EREAYEER0I9EEHNVES
FREEE -

AEERARRGEESENETE
BASTERRSE - ARRAEERE
BEEMREM RIS AEBERMN
BRAMEHRENRETIEEEMD
HRR RASEM R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI195NA3IAILEE

36. OTHER BORROWINGS 36. HAfER
2019 2018
20195 20185
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AREFT
Other borrowings Hffasx 73,585 102,166
An analysis of the Group's other borrowings into principal amounts is as follows: BAREEBEMERD AASE TN
T~
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARETFT
On demand or within one year RERH—FNR 36,008 32,770
In the second year F-F 14,090 31,819
In the third to fifth years, FE=FFERF
inclusive (BEEREMF) 23,487 37,577
73,585 102,166
All other borrowings are denominated in RMB. The Group's other borrowings FrEEMETIUAREAE - REBH
are secured by the Group's certain property, plant and equipment amounted to HEZ AR 14950,0007T (20184 -
RMB 14,950,000 (2018: RMB20,610,000). AR®2061000070) ZETHE - BE
R IEER -
As at 3| December 2019, the weighted average interest rate of the Group's other M2019F 128318 » REFH M E
borrowings is 8.06% (2018: 8.06%). K2 INEEHFE E8.06% (20184 -
8.06%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HE019F 2R3 BLLEE

37. LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HEAE
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
As at As at
3| December 3| December
2019 2019
HEMR HENTNERE
M2019F 128318 M2019F 12831 R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARKFT
Within one year —FR 110,276 73,424
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZENF (AEBEMEF) 322,944 235,435
After five years HE% 420,957 349,058
854,177
Less: Future finance charges W RRBEE R (196,260)
Present value of lease liabilities ME&EHRE 657,917 657,917
Less: Amount due for settlement 1218 B REH
within 12 months ENmesE
(shown under current liabilities) GITRRBEEET) (73,424)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  |12{E A& EIHEMREE 584,493
At 31 December 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.75%. Interest R2019 124318 - FHEREENX
rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value R4.75% > METEEXNBHPETE - 8
interest rate risk. REBEAZ NFEFERER °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @)

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

38. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

38. EEHELE A

2019 2018

20195 20184F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFIT AREFT

Deferred tax assets RIEFIBEE 1,412 2,595
Deferred tax liabilities ERETIEER (34,413) (35,417)
(33,001) (32.822)

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

AR N B F R R E RIEEN
REENABERAZHNT

Deductible
temporary
Fair value differences

adjustment from expenses

on business and others

combination B R HAth
Tax losses =gt IR Total
BEEE ZAFERE ERER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
At | January 2018 201851 A 1R 4,488 (47,925) 49,789 6,352
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (BiB=MBR), /AR (4,488) 28,837 (47,194) (22,845)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERHT B A A — (16,329) — (16,329)

At 31 December 2018 and M2018F 12 A31B &

| January 2019 20191 A18 - (35417) 2,595 (32,822)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss FABR/(BEENR) - 1,004 (1,183) (179)
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12318 - (34,413) 1,412 (33,001)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

38. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued) 38. EBEBEEE BE (&)
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses of RBEHR AEEFEAREK
RMB381,975,000 (2018: RMB284,797,000) available for offset against future profits. 381,975,0007T (20184 : AR®
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future 284,797,0007T) B A B AR IE 5 1B A]
profit streams. The unused tax losses will be expired as follows: PRI AT o AR AERA T
AITRANE - HABRBEERREE - R
PAMBEBERKSRIMNT
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AEETT
2019 20196 - 13,750
2020 2020%F 16,840 16,840
2021 2021 9,670 10,308
2022 2022F 29,640 33466
2023 20234 150,834 210,433
2024 20245 174,991 -
381,975 284,797
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

39. SHARE CAPITAL
The Company and the Group

[SE
ARARFER

Number ~ Nominal value

of shares per share Share capital
B E BREE B
HK$ HK$
BT B
Authorised EE
At | January 2018, 3| December 2018, M20185F 1 AR - 20185F12A318 »
| January 2019 and 31 December 2019 2019F 1 A1 BR2019%12A31 B [,140,000,000 0.001 [,140,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
At | January 2018, 31 December 2018, R2018% 1 AR - 2018F12A31H -
| January 2019 and 31 December 2019 2019 | A1BR20194 12 A31 B 758,418,085 0.001 758418
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AEETT
Presented as: 255 598 598

The Board announced that on 21 December 2017, it resolved to adopt the
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme as a means to recognise the contribution of and
provide incentives for the key management of the Group and persons who made

special contribution to the Group. As at 3| December 2019 and 2018, no award

has been made under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

39. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 39. BRAE (&)
The Company and the Group (Continued) EATRREEE ()
Details of the trustee of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme purchased shares of BR 114 A% 17 B B &t 21 S ST AR IR PR 1 1%
the Company pursuant to the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme are as follows: B A7 B BhET BIPT B AV AR AR BV 3
BT

Price per share

BRER
Aggregate
Number of consideration
ordinary shares Highest Lowest paid
Month of purchase BAAR Epilie &= &K BENERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FET
December 2017 2017127 5,404,000 3.15 2.86 16,081
January 2018 20185 | A 6,291,000 3.19 3.00 19,691
March 2018 201853 H 3,050,000 2.80 2.60 8,407
April 2018 20184 A 198,000 2.68 2.65 529
July 2018 201847 A 4,812,000 223 1.88 9,728
August 2018 201858 H 880,000 215 2.10 864
September 2018 201849 A 4,847,000 229 204 10,568
October 2018 201810 A 5,171,000 234 2.19 [1,597
November 2018 2018511 H 6,718,000 2.30 202 14,801
December 2018 20185 12 A 487,000 223 2.10 1,054
Total a5t 37,858,000 94,320
RMB'000
AEEFT
Presented as: EXTrR 81,552
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

39.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Company and the Group (Continued)
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the retumn to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes other
borrowings as disclosed in note 36, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to the owner of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share

premium and reserves.

The Group’s management review the capital structure periodically. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and

share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND 40. AATMBMRRKREDCRE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARIZIRE 196,557 496,616
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,025 =
197,582 496,616
Current assets RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekHAeEED 9,541 29,083
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfI 3K » & & K E b fE N FIE 676 921
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR T B A RIFIA 339 339
10,556 30,343
Current liabilities V=N
Amount due to subsidiaries FEHHT B A RIFA 17,037 17,867
Other payables H A e+ 5018 4,723 2,836
21,760 20,703
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (BE) EEFE (11,204) 9,640
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 186,378 506,256
Net assets BEEFE 186,378 506,256
Capital and reserves EX K%
Share capital (LZN 598 598
Reserve 1 185,780 505,658
Total equity MR 186,378 506,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND

40. AQTHBMRARRAQBREE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
The followings are the movements of the Company’s reserve: UTAARRIRGEES
Treasury
share
Share reserve  Accumulated
premium EFR 5 losses Total
R EE it RiTER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFr AREFT ARETT
At | January 2018 201851 A 1R 1,264,166 (13,650) (6,859) 1,243,657
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREBEER
for the year = = (670,097) (670,097)
Purchase of shares under Restricted HRIRR 1R
Share Incentive Scheme MBI 2B B AR - (67,902) _ (67902)
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F 1231 B K
| January 2019 2019F I A1H 1,264,166 (81,552) (676,956) 505,658
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABERZHEBEER
for the year = = (319,878) (319.878)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31 8 1,264,166 (81,552) (996,834) 185,780
41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. BEFEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisiton ~ FEULEEYIZE - R
of property, plant and equipment NEGTREES
contracted for but not provided in the BRRERE B TS IwE
consolidated financial statements BENEREY 233911 258,301

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE



42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)  Name and relationship

Name

L

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SEMBERMRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

4. BBLERS
@ BEREEZ

Relationship with the Group

BAEEBR

Bosheng Medical Investment Co., Ltd.
BEBFREARNBRAR
Xining Modern Hospital of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Co., Ltd.
("Xining Modermn Hospital”)
AERRREARLR ((RERAER])
Hebei Modern Woman Hospital Co., Ltd.
(‘Hebei Modermn Woman Hospital”)
AR FEEAR AR (DR 72k )
Xiandai Materity Hospital of Nanchong Co,, Ltd
(“Xiandai Matemity Hospital of Nanchong”)
HRARGERRARAR ([ARRNBESR])
Leshan Modern Women Hospital Co,, Ltd
(‘Leshan Modern Women Hospital")
ZUBRRREBRARLA ([RURKFESR])
Gansu Taihetang medicine Co,, Ltd

(‘Gansu Taihetang medicine”)

HRAMZBEEREELR ([HBRAMEEE])

Company controlled by Mr. Lin Yuming
A ER AR 2 R F]
Company controlled by Mr. Lin Yurong, a shareholder of the Company

AARRIBRRMREREEER 2 A F]

Company controlled by Mr. Wu Yaping, a close family member
of Mr. Lin Yuming

AREFEE (MERAKEZER) FER 2 RF

Company controlled by Mr. Su Donggi, a close family member
of Mr. Lin Yuming

AHLHEEE (MERAXLEZOR) R AT

Company controlled by Lin Yurong, a close family member of Mr. Lin Yuming

AMER (MERAKEZAR) FER QA

Company controlled by Lin Yurong, a close family member of Mr. Lin Yuming

AMER (MERAKEZAR) FER QA
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. BHAIRS (&)
(b)  Related party transaction (b) EEWERZ
2019 2018
20194 20185
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEET T
Sales of pharmaceuticals medical devices LA T& F $HE B -
and consumables to: BRI S
Xining Modern Hospital AERRER - I
Leshan Modern \WWomen Hospital L RARBESBR = 2
Xiandai Maternity Hospital of Nanchong  FA7E3R IR E Bt 35 18
Hebei Modern Woman Hospital LR 2T &b 85 295
Gansu Taihetang medicine Co,, Ltd HEAMEBREFRETAA 1,382 30
1,502 356
Rental expense to Bosheng Medical JEfTEAEREEEE = 301
The above transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of business N EXSGRAERH T EKBE
of the Group and conducted in accordance with the terms and conditions IR B AR E B 6 3R N IR
mutually agreed by both parties. LT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FEMBEHRRMET @
For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HBZ019F A3 ALEE
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. BHAIRS (&)
(c)  Related party balances () EABEFL &R
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
Amount due to a related party PE1 R 5 7RI
Bosheng Medical Investment Co., Ltd. BEBERERNARAR 1,225 1,225
The above balances are unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed Pt TEIKE . 48
term of repayment. BEETFEHE -
(d)  Compensation of key management personnel d FTETEASHE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥TFT
Salaries and allowance o M2 3,334 1,989
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RIRAEFIETEI {0 41 28
3,375 2017
Further details of the director's emoluments are included in note 16

EXZHME—THIBENME
16 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FRREEMBLTZFHE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting RIBERR - KRR EEMNB AR
period are as follow: BT

Place of Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation Issued and paid-up capital interest/voting power Principal activities
HEATEE AEM AL B BRTRAZRE BARES REEZADL TEEH
2019 2018
WI9E 018%
Shanxi Tai He Tang Phammaceuticals Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC RMBS5, 100,000 100% 100%  Supply of pharmaceuticals and
medical devices business
WEANERRERA] i ARHS,1000007T A RS
Wuhan Modem Obstetrics and The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Gynecology Hospital Co, Ltd

HERRGEERBRAA i AR%100000007C RHESHBER RS

Chongging Modem Woman Hospital Co,, Ltd ~ The PRC RMB21,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

EFRR LT ERARAR i ARH21, 0000007 RESHER RS

Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB4,210,000 - 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

ERHMEABRARAR G AEH42100007C RESHER RS
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FRREEMBEAFZHE (H)
(Continued)
Place of Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation Issued and paid-up capital interest/voting power Principal activities
HWEARER AL AL B BRARMERE BAREE REEZASL TTEH
2019 2018
0195 018%
Guiyang Modem Woman Hospital Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB2,560,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services
ERARL T ERAR A i AR25600007C RSN ER RS
Guangzhou Woman Hospital Co, Ltd The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services
BNZTERERAA G ARH100000007C REUCENER RS
Chongging Bosheng Hospital The PRC RMB,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Management Co,, Ltd
ERBEBREEARAA G ARE1,0000007 REENER RS
Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics ~ The PRC RMB6,000,000 - 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services
and Gynecology Hospital Co, Ltd.
EREMNEREBRARAT G AEH60000007C REENER RS
Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Holding company and provision
Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd. of specialised hospital services
BENXREERARAA G AR 100000007 e NGV R
Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Obstetricsand ~ The PRC RMBI0,000,000 96.50% 96.50%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd
ERERNEREERARAT il AR 100000007 RESNERRS
Shanxi Wo De Investment Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB17,800,000 100% 100%  Holding company
LEAEEARRAR i AR 178000007 BRAT]
Fuzhou Modem Woman Hospital Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB25,000,000 99% 99%  Provision of specialised hospital services
BNRRGERRARAT P AR¥250000007C RESHERRS
Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 92%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Paediatrics Hospital Co,, Ltd
AMIMERENERARAA G ARE400000007C R EN B RS
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

FERAEENB LR ZFHE (F)

(Continued)
Place of Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation Issued and paid-up capital interest/voting power Principal activities
HWEARER AEM AL B BRTRERRA BAEELR REEZAML TEXH
2019 2018
019% 018%
Beijing HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB40,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Paediatrics Hospital Co, Ltd
IRNEERER AR A F ARH400000007C RESHER RS
Harmonicare Medical Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Holding company
MXEREERRAA BR 10000787 N
HarMoniCare Medical Management and The PRC RMB882,000,000/ 100% 100% Holding company
Consulting Co, Ltd RMBI,250,000,000
MEBREREAERAA i AR %882,0000007C/ ZRAT
AR 12500000007
Harmonicare Medical Investment Limited the British UsSD0.00! 100% 100%  Holding company
Virgin Islands
(‘The BVI")
Harmonicare Medical Investment Limited AEAR 0001 %7 A YN
B (%8
1)
Galaxy Power Solution Limited The BVI UsD200 100% 100% Holding company
Galaxy Power Solution Limited REARHE Q00T NG
Sharp Charm Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% [00% Holding company
Sharp Charm Limited & 1007 YN
Bejing He An Da Management The PRC RMB682,000,000/ 100% 100%  Investment holding
Consutting Co, Ltd RMBI,050,000,000
IRAREEEFAERAA i AR ¥682,0000007C/ RARR
AR 10500000007
Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and The PRC RMB10,000,000 95% 95%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd.
REINXRERRARAR i AR 100000007 RESMER RS
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For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FRREEMBEAFZHE (H)
(Continued)
Place of Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation Issued and paid-up capital interest/voting power Principal activities
WELFER AEMER I 58 BRARMERE BAREE REEZASL TTEH
2019 2018
0195 185

Xiamen HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB19,800,000/ 99% 99%  Inactive

Paediatrics Hospital Co,, Ltd RMB20,000,000
EFfRRRERARLA HE ABRH 198000007,/ ez

AK#200000007C

Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB36,000,000/ 60% 60%  Inactive

Paediatrics Hospital Co, Ltd. RMB50,000,000

(*Zhengzhou HarMoniCare”)
BAmIXERERARAR i ARE360000007C,/ IEE%

(&%) ARE500000007C
Nantong Hemeijia The PRC RMB36,734,700 51% 51%  Provision of specialised hospital services
BRNER G ARH367347007C REIHERRE
Beijing Baiziwan The PRC RMB36,734,700 51% 51%  Provision of specialised hospital services
IrETE G ARH367347007C REEIHERRS
Hibaby The PRC RMB50,000,000 98% 98%  Provision of assisted maternity consultant

management consultings

Iy i ARH500000007T REHEEREERN

Notes:

(@) Al the subsidiaries established in the PRC are registered as limited liability companies

under the PRC law.

(b)  None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

BifaE -

@

FA R B AR SL A0 KT8 22 A9 AR
BRBZEZEMABRAF -

RAFEERBEEMNBARD BT
ERERSES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBEHRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWI95 A3 ALEFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiaries that

has material non-controlling interest is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

3. ARFEEMBEAR2FHE (&)

BRASEHEE A EREROME
ARIMFHEERBERIIINT o TFIR
BERGRESERHHANSE -

Name Nantong Hemeijia Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Bejing Baiziwan
e R ELIEA LIPS tRETE
Principal place of business/country of incorporation The PRC/The PRC The PRC/The PRC The PRC/The PRC
TEEHE /ARRIER hE hE /b hE /e
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI 49%/49% 40%/40% 49%149%
FERERAHMERER / RAES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
20198 20185 019E 20185F 20195 0185
RMB'000  RMBOOD  RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'OJO  RMB'O0
ARBFE ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFI
As at 3| December RI2A31A
Current assets REBE 214,404 255492 12,019 3736 12,706 13,120
Non-current assets FMBAE 295238 24636 181,163 5829 31,591 22989
Current liabilties nBaE (G1457)  (13073) (7668  (40317)  (41273)  (2085%)
Non-current liabiities FnBaR (44556) (51295 (127416) (1921) ~ (149,084) (15873)
433629 437485 (10916) 19727~ (346060)  (188360)
Fquty attributable to owners to the Company AR ATE(GIER 01,151 23117 (6,550) 1183 (176491)  (96064)
Accumulated NC RitFEE R R 202,478 214368 (4,366) 7891 (169569  (9229%)
433629 437485 (10916) 19727~ (346060)  (188360)
Year ended 3| December HZNA3NBLEE
Revenue and other income g REAMA 64,653 94,18 - - 85,045 48745
Expenses FixX (68509)  (108262)  (30.643)  (503)) (42745  (120103)
Loss for the year FREE (3856)  (14144)  (30643)  (2503))  (I57,700)  (713%8)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZAFRLE (3,85) (14,144) (30,643) (25031)  (157,700) (71,358)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to ARAEAA
owners of the Company 2 EBRER (1967) (7213)  (18386)  (15019)  (80427)  (363%))
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI FEREREGZESELS (1,889) 6931) (1257 (10012)  (712D3) (34965)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBERHE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2019
HEWIENA3IBLEEFE

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4. BERTREBRHE
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities METBHEE2AEEE
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising from financing TRIFARERFARETHEE 2
activities during the year: BEE

Other borrowings Lease liabilities Total
HitfE R HEAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
At | January 2018 R2018F1 AR = - -
Change in financing cash flows MERERES 74246 = 74,246
Non-cash changes FREEH
— Acquisitions of a subsidary - kE—RERE R A 22,700 - 22,700
— Interest charged — [T HE 5220 - 5220
At 31 December 2018 and | January 2019, as R20I18F12A3IA R
previously reported 019F 1 A1B (MBEMZH) 102,166 - 102,166
Effect of changes in accounting policies (note 3) BRI X2 (HiE3) - 739,101 739,101
At | January 2019, as restated RR2019%1 A 1B (LE5) 102,166 739,101 841,267
Change in financing cash flows HERERES (36,780) (73734) (110514)
Non-cash changes FHLEE
— Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) — HEMB AR (E3) — (60,887) (60887)
— Additions of leases - REME = 32070 32,070
— Cancellation of leases - BUEHE = (5291) (5291)
~ Interest charged - E5HE 8,199 26,658 34,857
At 3| December 2019 R2019%12A318 73585 657917 731502
45. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. HEZRSHBE/E
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by REMBHRREN2021FI ASHKES
the Board of Directors on 8 January 2021. S RIRRETIE
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DEFINITIONS
BE

“AGM"
[BRBFAE]

“Articles of Association”
[ER248 ]

“Audit Committee”

[EZREE

"Beijing Baiziwan

HarMoniCare Hospital”

[JeRETF AL

“Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital”

[ bR |

"Beijing Huafu Hospital"

[ E T2 |

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

=34

“Bosheng Medical”

[MEEE]

“CG Code”
[XRERTH

annual general meeting of the Company

ARBBRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company adopted on 9 June 2015 which became effective
on the Listing Date
ARRAR2015F6 A9 B FRMILR £ B LR S2AR)

the audit committee of the Board

EXEENLES

Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd (At E F
BMEET B BR AR, previously named as Beijing Huafu Women and Children
Hospital Co,, Ltd. (At REET47 72 2Pt B R 2 ), a limited liability company established in
the PRC and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of our Company
ITtREFENEGFRBRARAR AL RENGRBRARAR - RPEIRKL
BBRRAF - REAAREZENE AR

Beijing HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (1t R A&7 52 &b
BBR7AF]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of

our Company

IERMXREREBRARLDA  EHEKINERAR  AERFEENBAR

Beijing Huafu Women and Children Hospital Co., Ltd. (Gt RENFEZERBR A
a]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, now renamed as Beijing Baiziwan
HarMoniCare Gynecology and Pediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (It & F/&M*ER 5T B A
fRAR])

TREMGRBRARAR - EREKZNERAR  REELZRILRE FENE
R B AR AR

the board of Directors of the Company
ARRIEFE

Bosheng Medical Investment Co, Ltd. (B4 BEIRERMNBR A F)), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, a connected person of our Company by virtue of
Mr. Lin Yuming, one of our Directors and substantial Shareholders, holding 59.1% of the
equity interest in Bosheng Medical

BEBBRERNERAR  EPEKAKRNBRAR - BEFE/RARNE
EMTFERRMERLERFEERES I %NBREMARARZBEAL

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

AR RIRER 14 PrE R R EVRST A

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE



“China” or “PRC"

[l

“Chongging Liren Hospital”

[EEE AR

"Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare
Hospital"

[BEEREMEER

“Chongging Modern Hospital”

[BERNKER]

“Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare
Hospital”

[EEEMMEER

“Company” or “our Company or

“Harmonicare”

AR YNCGITEARIES - 3
“Controlling Shareholder(s)"
[ AR AR |

“Corresponding Period”

[R5 ]

“Directors”

(&%)
“Fuzhou Modern Hospital”

[TEMERA B

DEFINITIONS (coNTINUED)
- RE )

the People’s Republic of China; for the purpose of this annual report only, references to
“China" or the "PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Hong Kong

REARLAME  SRAFHRM S [FE | NERALTEESE - FERFEHITT
BERkES

Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co., Ltd. (EE & MEABRABRAA]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

EEHTHABRARLT  EPENINARAT  ARAAZ2ANBAA

Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (EE 5k
MEIFEEFR AR AA]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

BERBENEREBRARLR  ETEKRINEARAF - REARARIZIF2EME

NG

Chongging Modemn Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (EERR X FEFLERAF]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BERRRLFERERAR  ERBEKINARRR - RARRIZ2ENEAR]

Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (EE &
MAEFERR AR A R]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

SEENAEREBRARAT  ERERINERAT  ARAAZ2ENEA
Al

Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 26 August 2014
MEBFZERARAF - N2014F8 A2 AERSHSEMKINOERRERATE

NG

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB EmR A T H0EE

the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE017F 12831 BIEFE

directors of the Company
ARRESF

Fuzhou Modern Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (fMRRIFEER AR AR]), a limited

liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BNARBEBRARAR  ERERINBRAF - RARAIZEZENBEAR
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- DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)
- 4E )

"Global Offering”
[2IRBE]

"GMP Certificate”
[ GMPRRF&

“Group”, “our Group”, “we” or “us"

[ [ARE] 3

“GSP Certificate”
[ GSPRRE |

“Guangzhou Woman Hospital”
[ 22 F 28 |

"Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital”
[ESMEER |

"Guiyang HarMoniCare
Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital”

[EfSxmEERR

"Harmony Care”

[ Harmony Care |

"HarMoniCare Management”

[AXERERE

“"Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital”

[ REET M Epr ]

initial public offering of the Shares and listing of the Group on the Stock Exchange on 7 July
2015
AREBR015F7 A7 BB P& R AR EER D & £

The Good Manufacturing Practices for Pharmaceutical Products Certificate
(Rt EEE8EEAEEE)

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARRIRAKBAR

The Good Supply Practices for Pharmaceutical Products Certificate

(BRReE8elRTEELE)

Guangzhou Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (BMZFE&RARAE]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BMNZFBRARAR  APERINERAR  AAARZ2ENEAT

Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital Co., Ltd (EF5MZEEREMR A F]) (formerly named as
Guiyang Modern Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (BEFSIRRZFERABRAF])), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
ERMEBRAERLR (A1H : ERRALFBEARAR) - ERRBZHNERL
Al RARAIZEENB AR

Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (B 5151 & Er
B 7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

ERMEREBRARAR  EREEMRIMARLATF  AERRFRZ2EMNBL
=

Harmony Care International Investment Limited

Harmony Care International Investment Limited

HarMoniCare Medical Management and Consulting Co., Ltd. (FIEEZEEEERER A
Al), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

MEBRERHAFRLF  ERFEKRINERLF  AERFRZ2ENBAR

Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (B3 TR
E AR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

REINXREBRARAR  EPEKINERAR - RARREEENBAR
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"Hibaby"

[SLR%H ]

“Homecare”

[ Homecare |

“HKEx"
[BARHH]

"Hong Kong" or “HK"
(&%)

“IFRSs”
[ BIFR 3 B iR 5 2 R

“Independent Third Party(ies)"

(B F=77]

yap

[cl

“Listing Date”
[ ETHE]
“Listing Rules”
[ Em#RAl]
“Model Code”

(R

DEFINITIONS (coNTINUED)
- RE )

Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd. (Sl B HERER AR A), a limited liability company
established in the PRC, an associated company of our Company

JEBREEEERAR  RPBEKINERAR - BALRZBEQE

Homecare Interational Investment Limited

Homecare Intemational Investment Limited

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
BEERHRNEEMBRAR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEERRIITHE

International Financial Reporting Standards
B R B 75 e o 22 R

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are not connected (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) with any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders (within
the meaning of the Listing Rules) of us, our subsidiaries or any of their respective associates
BHEM  APOHBRARSRESEAEAMEANES  THAMSTERR (L
TRAMEEE) BEME (LMRAMESREE) OEALLR

the Joint Commission International, an international arm of The Joint Commission. The
Joint Commission is a United States-based independent, not-for—profit organization which
accredits and certifies healthcare organizations and programs

Joint Commission International * Bf & Z B @B A Y - AZBERERNBIUI
SNEAS - B EBREREBNIERNRENRE

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commenced on the Stock Exchange i.e. 7 July
2015
Bin BRFIERI R TR & 2 B H (B201547 A7)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from time

to time

B AT L ATIR8) (EREERT)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in

Appendix |0 to the Listing Rules
LRI ER 1 OPFEl LT AERETER R ZHRETHI

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 + 2019 £}



\

DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)
- 4E )

“Nantong Hemeijia Hospital”

EERE R

“Nomination Committee”

[REZE®

“ob-gyn"
[REE |

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FMZES]

“Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”
or “RSI Scheme”

[ B 51 45 P R Bt 221

“Review Period”

[ [ REEARE

“RMB”
[AR%]

“Selford"”

E-1E

“SFO"

[ &5 KB ]

“Shanghai Taiyuan”
[ EE%R]

“Shanxi Modern Hospital”
[L7a3R A8k |

“Share(s)"

[B%{n

Nantong Hemeijia Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (BBMERFHER
BT BR A7), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

HRNEFGENERARAR  EHEKINERAR - AAAEEEENEAR

the nomination committee of the Board

EZQRYZEY

obstetrics and gynecology

IR R ER

the prospectus dated 25 June 2015 issued by the Company
AR R BEIA2015%F6 A25 B BRER

the remuneration committee of the Board
ExerMEEe

the restricted share incentive scheme of the Company approved and adopted by the Board
on 2| December 2017
EEEN2017F 12821 BHUE KRR R BIR SR (R E AT &)

the period from | January 2018 to 31 December 2018
201851 A1 BE20185F 12431 BEIfE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - REXESH

Selford Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BREBERZ (JLR) BRAA]), a
limited liability company established in the PRC, an associated company of our Company

ERREFNR (LR) BRAR RPBKINERAE] - BAARZHERE]

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

RAEER - BRINEMTMERNBREDIFEST | EES LG HD

Shanghai Taiyuan Jiangen Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership)
FERRRREERESRER (FRAR)

Shanxi Modem Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd.
LR REEREREEAR

share(s) with par value of HK$0.001 each in the capital of the Company
AR R FAXEE0.00 1 ETL A

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE



“Shareholder(s)"
R

“Share Option Scheme”

EeEEll

“Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital”

[RIIFE R |
“Stock Exchange”
[ B3 ]

“Tai He Tang"
[AFE ]

“TK Harmony"
[ TK Harmony |

“Whritten Guidelines”
[E£m¥ES|]

“Wuhan Modern Hospital"

[EUER K8

“Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital”

[ A= |

“Xiamen HarMoniCare Hospital”

[EFIME 2 |

DEFINITIONS (coNTINUED)
- RE )

holder(s) of the Share(s)
[SIESEPN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders on 9 June 2015 which became effective on the Listing Date
ARAKBIRN2015F6 A9 RBBN—HARRA R RANBLRETE (B
i RHAER)

Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital (FJI 3R 7R &),
previously known as “Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and paediatrics Hospital Co.,
Ltd. (RYIFIFER ZRIEFR AR AF])" a limited liability company established in the PRC,
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

AYIFER ZRE (BT DRI AR ZMERARAR ) - EREKIMNER
DR RAREBERENB AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBARGMERAR

Shanxi Tai He Tang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (IUFE RFEEEFRAF)), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned Subsidiary of our Company
IWAAMZEHEZFRAF  AEPEKINARLF - REARF2EMBLAF

TK Harmony Limited
TK Harmony Limited

written guidelines on securities transactions by employees

EEETEFRFNETES

Wuhan Modemn Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd. (BVERRIGEERER
A R]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our

Company
RERAREBRARAR  ERBEKRINERLAF  ARRARZ2EWBAR

Wuxi HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co. Ltd. (E$HFEFEERA
[ X 7A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, independent of the Company

and its connected persons

BEHNERERRERAF  EPEKINERAR  BURARTMEBEAL

Xiamen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (/& PIF13E67 52 8
Bt AR 2 7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

EFMFERZBRARAR - ERERINBRAR - RARAFZ2EMNBLF
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DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)
- 4E )

“YoY"
(424 ] 15

"“Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Hospital”

=S 15

year-on-year

B EFRHMEL

Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (Z5/H 1 F1ZE %
STERARAR]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

HMHMNEFERERERAR  EPEKINERAR - RARREEENBAR

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “subsidiary” and EARERT  RXESHAMEBN  [HE
“substantial shareholder” shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Listing Al TBEAL] THBAR I R[FERER]

Rules, unless the context otherwise requires. The English names of the companies ~ JEEE EMAAIFME FTREAENEE - £
established in the PRC are for identification purposes only. BIRK I R AR S B B E R o

@ HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEBEZERERAAE
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